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33 LOCKE DRIVE, MARLBOROUGH, MASSACHUSETTS 01752

(ADDRESS, INCLUDING ZIP CODE, OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES)

REGISTRANT’S TELEPHONE NUMBER, INCLUDING AREA CODE: (508) 756-1212

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes S No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes
x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting
company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer x Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o
(Do not check if a smaller

reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes
£ No x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date.

Class: Outstanding at October 30, 2013:
Common Stock, $0.001 par value per share 2,610,116,463 shares
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Financial Statements

ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND DECEMBER 31, 2012

September December 31,
2013 2012
(Unaudited)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $5,452,653 $7,241,852
Grants receivable 25,685 96,425
Deferred royalty fees, current portion 62,435 82,435
Prepaid expenses 949,065 132,044
Total current assets 6,489,838 7,552,756

Property and equipment, net 697,027 175,256
Deferred royalty fees, less current portion 123,388 170,216
Deposits 66,751 29,856
Deferred costs 165,298 568,458

TOTAL ASSETS $7,542,302 $8,496,542

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $2,716,272 $2,956,743
Accrued expenses 2,647,728 3,210,908
Accrued settlement – 6,807,891
Convertible promissory notes, current portion net of discounts of $0 and $30,935,
respectively – 256,850

Senior secured convertible debentures, current portion, net of discount of $275,396
and $290,000, respectively 2,124,604 2,110,000

Embedded conversion option liabilities, current portion 235,595 460,668
Loss contingency accrual 7,528,896 6,176,787
Deferred revenue, current portion 157,872 224,935
Total current liabilities 15,410,967 22,204,782
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Senior secured convertible debentures, less current portion, net of discount of
$75,107 and $435,000, respectively 1,724,893 3,165,000

Embedded conversion option liabilities, less current portion 467,405 507,033
Warrant and option derivative liabilities 357,875 972,381
Deferred revenue, less current portion 1,789,170 1,907,574
Total liabilities 19,750,310 28,756,770

Series A-1 redeemable preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares
authorized, 0 and 113 shares issued and outstanding; aggregate liquidation value, net
of discounts: $0 and $1,607,497, respectively

– 1,598,533

Commitments and contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:
Preferred stock, Series B; $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized, 1,000
shares issued and outstanding 1 1

Preferred stock, Series C; $0.001 par value; 50,000,000 shares authorized, 1,750
shares issued and outstanding 2 2

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 2,750,000,000 shares authorized, 2,608,116,463
and 2,232,720,779 shares issued and outstanding 2,608,116 2,232,721

Additional paid-in capital 319,606,218 289,842,597
Promissory notes receivable, net of discount of $2,469,699 and $3,776,528
respectively (33,399,438 ) (31,622,696 )

Accumulated deficit (301,022,907) (282,311,386)
Total stockholders' deficit (12,208,008 ) (21,858,761 )
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT $7,542,302 $8,496,542

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

Three Months Ended September
30,

Nine Months Ended September
30,

2013 2012 2013 2012
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Revenue (License fees and royalties) $39,468 $68,184 $185,517 $342,053
Cost of revenue 15,609 15,609 66,827 46,827
Gross profit 23,859 52,575 118,690 295,226

Operating expenses:
Research and development 2,898,253 2,363,098 8,285,406 6,204,146
General and administrative expenses 3,211,866 2,695,020 9,148,133 8,994,088
Total operating expenses 6,110,119 5,058,118 17,433,539 15,198,234
Loss from operations (6,086,260 ) (5,005,543 ) (17,314,849 ) (14,903,008 )

Non-operating income (expense):
Interest and other income 162,548 3,585 165,340 13,170
Interest expense (271,021 ) (278,493 ) (1,165,438 ) (826,109 )
Finance gain (loss) 343,002 (2,891,600 ) (637,257 ) 779,481
Fines – – (587,147 ) (3,500,000 )
Gain on extinguishment of debt – – 438,587 –
Adjustments to fair value of derivatives 146,609 (336,200 ) 371,255 256,282
Total non-operating income (expense) 381,138 (3,502,708 ) (1,414,660 ) (3,277,176 )

Loss before provision for income tax (5,705,122 ) (8,508,251 ) (18,729,509 ) (18,180,184 )

Provision for income tax – – – –
Net loss $(5,705,122 ) $(8,508,251 ) $(18,729,509 ) $(18,180,184 )

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted 2,573,191,224 2,122,463,857 2,451,391,145 2,048,055,615

Loss per share:
Basic and diluted $(0.00 ) $(0.00 ) $(0.01 ) $(0.01 )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013

Series B
Preferred
Stock

Series C
Preferred
Stock

Common Stock Additional
Paid-in

Promissory
Notes
Receivable,

Accumulated Total
Stockholders'

Shares AmountShares AmountShares Amount Capital net Deficit Deficit
Balance
December 31,
2012

1,000  $1 1,750 $ 2 2,232,720,779 $ 2,232,721 $ 289,842,597 $ (31,622,696) $ (282,311,386) $ (21,858,761)

Issuance of
shares for
settlements

– – – – 100,283,406 100,283 5,599,717 – – 5,700,000

Issuance of
shares for
services

– – – – 9,981,686 9,981 1,262,381 – – 1,272,362

Redemption
of Series A-1
Preferred
Stock

– – – – 27,522,833 27,523 1,885,314 – – 1,912,837

Accrued
dividends on
Series B and
C Preferred
Stock

– – – – – – 1,758,754 – (1,758,754 ) –

Accretion of
note
receivable
discount on
Series B and
C Preferred
Stock

– – – – – – – (1,776,742 ) 1,776,742 –

Stock based
compensation – – – – – – 2,650,530 – – 2,650,530

Issuance of
shares of

– – – – 237,607,759 237,608 16,606,925 – – 16,844,533
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common stock
for cash

Net loss for
the nine
months ended
September 30,
2013

– – – – – – – – (18,729,509 ) (18,729,509)

Balance,
September 30,
2013
(unaudited)

1,000 $ 1 1,750 $ 2 2,608,116,463 $ 2,608,116 $ 319,606,218 $ (33,399,438) $ (301,022,907) $ (12,208,008)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2013 AND 2012

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2013 2012
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $(18,729,509) $(18,180,184)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 64,320 35,541
Amortization of deferred charges 96,828 46,827
Amortization of deferred revenue (185,467 ) (342,053 )
Redeemable preferred stock dividend accrual 43,873 100,409
Stock based compensation 2,650,530 2,892,403
Amortization of deferred issuance costs 403,160 604,887
Amortization of discounts 414,396 120,813
Adjustments to fair value of derivatives (371,255 ) (256,282 )
Shares of common stock issued for compensation 1,272,363 –
Non-cash financing costs (128,233 ) 1,263,676
Gain on debt extinguishment (438,587 ) (779,481 )
Options issued for consulting services 32,550 51,122
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Grants receivable 70,740 (140,046 )
Prepaid expenses and other assets (847,021 ) 145,784
Accounts payable and other liabilities (1,759,433 ) 2,881,360

Net cash used in operating activities (17,410,745) (11,555,224)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equipment (586,091 ) (10,269 )
Payment of lease deposits (36,895 ) –

Net cash used in investing activities (622,986 ) (10,269 )

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock – 6,000,000
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 16,844,532 800,000
Repayment of senior secured convertible debentures (600,000 ) (83,500 )

Net cash provided by financing activities 16,244,532 6,716,500

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (1,789,199 ) (4,848,993 )

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING BALANCE 7,241,852 13,103,007
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING BALANCE $5,452,653 $8,254,014

CASH PAID FOR:
Interest $– $–
Income taxes $– $–

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issuance of note receivable on issuance of shares and exercise of warrants for 0 and
88,580,669 shares of common stock $– $7,200,000

Record note receivable discount related to Series C preferred stock $– $(1,026,809 )
Accrued dividends on Series B and C Preferred Stock $1,758,754 $1,487,715
Accretion of note receivable discount on Series B and C Preferred Stock $1,776,742 $1,500,672
Issuance of 100,283,406 and 330,690,982 shares of common stock for accrued
settlement $5,700,000 $38,427,013

Conversion of Series A Preferred stock for 27,522,833 shares of common stock $1,912,837 $–
Issuance of 0 and 8,750,000 shares of common stock as commitment fee for securities
purchase agreement $– $700,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

6
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS

The unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared by Advanced Cell Technology, Inc. and
Subsidiary (collectively the “Company”), pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission.  The information furnished herein reflects all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals and
adjustments) which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to fairly present the operating results for the
respective periods. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally present in annual consolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”) have been omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. These consolidated financial statements should be
read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2013, as amended. The results
for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full
year ending December 31, 2013.

Organization and Nature of Business

The Company is a life science company, incorporated in the state of Delaware, focused on the emerging field of
regenerative medicine. The Company’s core business strategy is to develop and ultimately commercialize stem cell
derived cell therapies and biologics that will deliver safe and efficacious patient therapies, and which can be
manufactured at scale and are reimbursable at attractive levels. The Company is conducting several ongoing clinical
trials for treating macular degeneration, and it has a preclinical development pipeline focused on products for eye
diseases, autoimmune and inflammatory diseases, and wound healing. The Company has no therapeutic products
currently available for sale and does not expect to have any therapeutic products commercially available for sale for a
period of years, if at all. These factors indicate that the Company’s ability to continue its research and development
activities is dependent upon the ability of management to obtain additional financing as required.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation —The Company follows accounting standards set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”). The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP.
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References to GAAP issued by the FASB in these footnotes are to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification,
sometimes referred to as the Codification or ASC.

Principles of Consolidation — The accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary Mytogen, Inc. are
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. All intercompany balances and transactions were
eliminated in consolidation.

Segment Reporting —ASC 280, “Segment Reporting” requires use of the “management approach” model for segment
reporting. The management approach model is based on the way a company’s management organizes segments within
the company for making operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company determined it has one
operating segment. Disaggregation of the Company’s operating results is impracticable, because the Company’s
research and development activities and its assets overlap, and management reviews its business as a single operating
segment. Thus, discrete financial information is not available by more than one operating segment.

Use of Estimates — These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and,
accordingly, require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Specifically, the Company’s management has estimated loss contingencies related to outstanding
litigation. In addition, Management has estimated variables used to calculate the Black-Scholes option pricing model
used to value derivative instruments and the Company estimates the fair value of the embedded conversion option
associated with the senior secured convertible debentures using a binomial lattice model as discussed below under
“Fair Value Measurements”. Also, management has estimated the expected economic life and value of the Company’s
licensed technology, the Company’s net operating loss for tax purposes, share-based payments for compensation to
employees, directors, consultants and investment banks, and the useful lives of the Company’s fixed assets and its
accounts receivable allowance. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are comprised of certain highly liquid investments with maturities of
three months or less when purchased. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses related to this concentration of risk. As
of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had deposits in excess of federally-insured limits
totaling $5,378,091 and $6,741,852, respectively.

7
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Grant Received — From time to time, the Company participates in research grants both as an initiator of grants as well
as a sub-recipient of grant funds. The Company incurs costs for the grant and is subsequently reimbursed for these
expenses by grant receipts. The Company records such receipts as a reduction in research and development costs. For
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company recorded as a reduction in research and
development costs, $40,010, and $160,054, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012,
the Company recorded as a reduction in research and development costs $140,046 and $260,090, respectively.

Grants Receivable — The Company periodically assesses its grants receivable for collectability on a specific
identification basis. If collectability of an account becomes unlikely, the Company records an allowance for that
doubtful account. Once the Company has exhausted efforts to collect, management writes off the grants receivable
against the allowance it has already created.

Property and Equipment — The Company records its property and equipment at historical cost. The Company expenses
maintenance and repairs as incurred. Upon disposition of property and equipment, the gross cost and accumulated
depreciation are written off and the difference between the proceeds and the net book value is recorded as a gain or
loss on sale of assets. In the case of certain assets acquired under capital leases, the assets are recorded net of imputed
interest, based upon the net present value of future payments. Assets under capital lease are pledged as collateral for
the related lease.

The Company provides for depreciation over the assets’ estimated useful lives as follows:

Machinery & equipment 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Office furniture 4 years
Leasehold improvements Lesser of lease life or economic life

Patents — The Company follows ASC 350-30, “General Intangibles Other than Goodwill,” in accounting for its
patents. ASC 350-30 provides that costs of internally developing, maintaining, or restoring intangible assets that are
not specifically identifiable, that have indeterminate lives, or that are inherent in a continuing business and related to
an entity as a whole, shall be recognized as an expense when incurred. The Company has expensed as research and
development expense all costs associated with developing its patents.
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Equity Method Investment — The Company follows ASC 323, “Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures,” in
accounting for its investment in the joint venture with CHA Bio & Diostech Co. Ltd. (see Note 3 below). In the event
the Company’s share of the joint venture’s net losses reduces the Company’s investment to zero, the Company will
discontinue applying the equity method and will not provide for additional losses unless the Company has guaranteed
obligations of the joint venture or is otherwise committed to provide further financial support for the joint venture. If
the joint venture subsequently reports net income, the Company will resume applying the equity method only after its
share of that net income equals the share of net losses not recognized during the period the equity method was
suspended.

Deferred Costs — Consist of the following:

(a) Payments, either in cash or share-based, made in connection with the sale of debentures which are amortized using
the effective interest method over the lives of the related debentures. These deferred issuance costs are charged to
financing costs when and if the related debt instrument is retired or converted early. The weighted average
amortization period for deferred debt issuance costs is 48 months.

(b) Payments made to secure commitments under certain financing arrangements. These amounts are recognized in
financing costs ratably over the period of the financing arrangements, and are recognized in financing costs
immediately if the arrangement is cancelled, forfeited or the utility of the arrangement to the company is otherwise
compromised.

8
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

(c) Payments made to financial institutions and consulting firms in order to provide financing related services. These
costs are being amortized over the terms of the related agreements.

Long-Lived Assets— The Company follows ASC 360-10, “Property, Plant, and Equipment,” which established a
“primary asset” approach to determine the cash flow estimation period for a group of assets and liabilities that represents
the unit of accounting for a long-lived asset to be held and used. Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset. Long-lived assets to be disposed of
are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Through September 30, 2013, the Company
had not experienced impairment losses on its long-lived assets.

Fair Value Measurements — The Company applies the provisions of ASC 820-10, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures.” ASC 820-10 defines fair value, and establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosures of fair
value measurement that enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measures. For certain financial instruments,
including cash and cash equivalents, grants receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to their relatively short maturities. The carrying amount of senior
secured convertible debentures approximates fair value as the interest rate charged on the debentures is based on the
prevailing rate. The three levels of valuation hierarchy are defined as follows:

· Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

·
Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of
the financial instrument.

· Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company analyzes all financial instruments with features of both liabilities and equity under ASC 480,
“Distinguishing Liabilities From Equity,” and ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.” Derivative liabilities are
adjusted to reflect fair value at each period end, with any increase or decrease in the fair value being recorded in
results of operations as adjustments to fair value of derivatives. The effects of interactions between embedded
derivatives are calculated and accounted for in arriving at the overall fair value of the financial instruments. In
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addition, the fair values of freestanding derivative instruments such as warrant and option derivatives are valued using
the Black-Scholes model.

The Company uses Level 2 inputs for its valuation methodology for the warrant derivative liabilities and certain
embedded conversion option liabilities as their fair values were determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model based on various assumptions. The Company’s derivative liabilities are adjusted to reflect fair value at each
period end, with any increase or decrease in the fair value being recorded in results of operations as adjustments to fair
value of derivatives.

The Company uses Level 3 inputs for its valuation methodology for the fair value of the embedded conversion options
associated with the senior secured convertible debentures.

The Company estimates the fair value of the embedded conversion option associated with the senior secured
convertible debentures using a binomial lattice model, which estimates and compares the present value of the principal
and interest payments to the as converted value to determine whether the holder of the notes should convert the notes
into the Company’s common stock or continue to receive principal and interest payments. The Company uses this
methodology to determine the fair value of the notes and corresponding beneficial conversion features because there
are no observable inputs available with respect to the fair value.

The binomial lattice model relies on the following Level 3 inputs: (1) expected volatility of the Company’s common
stock; (2) discount for illiquidity applicable to potentially large blocks of the Company’s common stock that may be
issued upon conversion of the senior secured convertible debentures; and (3) discount rate for contractual debt
principal and interest payments. The fair value of the embedded beneficial conversion feature is estimated as the
difference between the fair value of the notes with and without the conversion feature. The fair value of the notes
without the conversion feature is determined using one Level 3 input, the discount rate for contractual debt interest
and principal payments.

9
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

·
The expected volatility of the Company’s common stock is estimated from the historical volatility of daily returns in
the Company’s common stock price. The Company monitors the volatility of its common stock on a quarterly basis
to observe trends that many impact the fair value of the notes.

·

The discount for illiquidity is measured using an average-strike option that calculates the discount as the opportunity
cost for not being able to sell a large block of the Company’s common stock immediately at prevailing observable
market prices. Inputs to the average-strike option model include the expected volatility of the Company’s common
stock and time to sell a large block of the Company’s stock as Level 3 inputs and other observable inputs. The time to
sell the stock is estimated considering the historical daily trading volume of the Company’s common stock and
market maker estimates of the amount of shares that can be offered for sale above the normal the daily trading
volume without depressing the price of the Company’s common stock. We monitor the trading volume of the
Company’s common stock on a quarterly basis to observe trends that many impact the fair value of the notes.

·

The discount rate for contractual debt interest and principal payments is estimated considering the security
of the payments as stated in the debenture agreements, the Company’s credit standing, and yields to
maturity of comparable securities. The Company monitors credit spreads, lending rates for companies that
are at a similar stage of development, and the Company’s credit standing on a quarterly basis to observe
trends that may impact the fair value of the notes.

The fair value of the senior secured convertible debentures is sensitive to changes in the discount rate for contractual
debt principal and interest payments. A decrease in the discount would cause the fair value of the debentures to
increase. The discount rate may decrease due to many factors including, decreases in rates of return offered on similar
or alternative financial instruments, fluctuations in economic conditions, and improvement in the Company’s credit
standing. The Company’s credit standing may improve if the Company raised additional equity capital, grew earnings,
or reduced financial obligations.

Because the debentures are convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock, the fair value of the debentures is
sensitive to changes in the value, volatility and trading volume of the Company’s common stock as these are primary
factors affecting the value of the debenture holder’s conversion option. An increase in stock price and trading volume
may improve the ability of the debenture holders to sell large blocks of the Company’s common stock and increase the
likelihood of the debenture holders converting the notes into shares of the Company’s common stock. A reduction in
the volatility of the Company’s common stock may also increase the likelihood of the debenture holders converting the
debentures into shares of the Company’s common stock. Each of these factors may decrease the illiquidity discount
estimated for potentially large blocks of the Company’s common stock, which may increase the value of the note
conversion option and fair value. An improvement in the Company’s credit standing and increase in the Company’s
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stock price and trading volume may occur concurrently.

At September 30, 2013, the Company identified the following assets and liabilities that are required to be presented on
the balance sheet at fair value:

Fair Value Fair Value
Measurements at

As of September 30, 2013

Description September
30, 2013

Using Fair Value
Hierarchy
Level
1 Level 2 Level 3

Warrant and option derivative liabilities $357,875 $– $357,875 $–
Embedded conversion option liabilities 703,000 – – 703,000
Total $1,060,875 $– $357,875 $703,000
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(Unaudited)

The following table reconciles the change in fair value for measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy:

Embedded
Conversion
Option
Liabilities

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 845,000
Total (gains) or losses for the period included in earnings (142,000 )
Balance at September 30, 2013 $ 703,000

Gains and losses included in earnings for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 are reported as follows:

Adjustment
to
Fair Value
of
Derivatives

Total gain included in earnings $ 142,000

The following table provides quantitative information about measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy:

Fair Value at
September 30, Valuation

Description 2013 Technique Unobservable Input Value

Embedded conversion option liability 703,000
Binomial
Lattice
Model

Expected volatility of the
Company's common stock 71%

Discount for illiquidity of large
blocks of the Company's

5.7% to 100%
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common stock

Discount rate for contractual
debt principal and interest
payments

20.0%

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company recognized a gain of $146,609 and $371,255,
respectively, for the changes in the valuation of derivative liabilities. For the three and nine months ended September
30 2012, the Company recognized a loss of $336,200 and a gain of $256,282, respectively, for the changes in the
valuation of derivative liabilities.

The Company did not identify any non-recurring assets and liabilities that were recorded at fair value during the
periods presented.

Revenue Recognition and Deferred Revenue — The Company’s revenues are primarily generated from license and
research agreements with collaborators. Licensing revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
life of the license or the estimated economic life of the patents related to the license.

License fee revenue begins to be recognized in the first full month following the effective date of the license
agreement. Deferred revenue represents the portion of the license and other payments received that has not been
earned. Costs associated with the license revenue are deferred and recognized over the same term as the revenue.
Reimbursements of research expense pursuant to grants are recorded in the period during which collection of the
reimbursement becomes assured, because the reimbursements are subject to approval.

11
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(Unaudited)

In some cases, the Company is entitled to receive royalty payments from licensees. In such cases, the Company
recognizes the royalties when they are earned and collectability of those royalty payments is reasonably assured.

In connection with its license agreements, the Company recorded $39,468 and $185,517 in license fee revenue for the
three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively. In connection with its license agreements, the
Company recorded $68,184 and $342,053 in license fee revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2012, respectively, in its consolidated statements of operations, and the remainder of the license fees have been
accrued in deferred revenue at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Research and Development Costs — Research and development costs consist of expenditures for the research and
development of patents and technology, which cannot be capitalized. The Company’s research and development costs
consist mainly of payroll and payroll related expenses, research supplies and research grants. Reimbursements of
research expense pursuant to grants are recorded in the period during which collection of the reimbursement becomes
assured, because the reimbursements are subject to approval. Research and development costs are expensed as
incurred.

Share-Based Compensation — The Company records stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718,
“Compensation – Stock Compensation.” ASC 718 requires companies to measure compensation cost for stock-based
employee compensation at fair value at the grant date and recognize the expense over the employee’s requisite service
period. The Company recognizes in the statement of operations the grant-date fair value of stock options and other
equity-based compensation issued to employees and non-employees. There were 119,082,258 and 100,672,803
options outstanding as of September 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are provided using the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are
recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance
when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of the changes in tax laws and rates of the
date of enactment.
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When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the
taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the
position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax position is recognized in the financial statements in
the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax
positions taken are not offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not
recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being
realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax positions
taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in
the balance sheets along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon
examination.

Applicable interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits are classified as additional income taxes in
the statements of operations.

Net Loss Per Share — Earnings per share is calculated in accordance with the ASC 260-10, “Earnings Per Share.”
Basic earnings-per-share is based upon the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted
earnings-per-share is based on the assumption that all dilutive convertible shares and stock options were converted or
exercised. Dilution is computed by applying the treasury stock method. Under this method, options and warrants are
assumed to be exercised at the beginning of the period (or at the time of issuance, if later), and as if funds obtained
thereby were used to purchase common stock at the average market price during the period.

12
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As of September 30, 2013 and 2012, the following potential dilutive shares were excluded from the shares used to
calculate diluted earnings per share as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

September 30,
2013 2012

Options, exercisable 98,286,015 74,093,057
Warrants 7,829,883 21,757,421
Convertible shares, notes 79,750,873 4,232,132
Convertible shares, preferred stock – 1,506,887

185,866,771 101,589,497

Concentrations and Other Risks — Currently, the Company’s revenues are concentrated on a small number of
licensees/collaborators. The following table shows the Company’s concentrations of its revenue for those customers
comprising greater than 10% of total license revenue for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 and
2012.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

International Stem Cell Corporation * 18% 30% 51%
CHA Biotech and SCRMI 82% 48% 53% 29%
Lifeline * 24% * 14%
Embryone Sciences 18% 10% 11% *

*License revenue earned during the period was less than 10% of total license revenue.

Other risks include the uncertainty of the regulatory environment and the effect of future regulations on the Company’s
business activities. As the Company is a biotechnology research and development company, there is also the attendant
risk that someone could commence legal proceedings over the Company’s discoveries.
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Reclassifications — Certain amounts have been reclassified in the three and nine months period ended September 30,
2012 to conform with the three and nine months period ended September 30, 2013. The reclassifications are related to
costs that have been reclassified from research and development expenses to general and administrative expenses. The
reclassification is as follows:

For the Three Months Ended September 30, 2012

As
Previously Net Reclassified

Reported Reclass Amount

Research & Development $2,808,300 $(445,202) $2,363,098
General & Administrative $2,249,818 $445,202 $2,695,020

For the Nine Months Ended September 30, 2012

As
Previously Net Reclassified

Reported Reclass Amount

Research & Development $7,316,940 $(1,112,794) $6,204,146
General & Administrative $7,881,294 $1,112,794 $8,994,088

13
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-11, “Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities.” This ASU requires an entity to disclose information about offsetting and related arrangements
to enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position. In
January 2013, this guidance was amended by ASU 2013-01, “Clarifying the Scope of Disclosure about Offsetting
Assets and Liabilities,” which limits the scope of ASU No. 2011-11 to certain derivatives, repurchase and reverse
repurchase agreements, and securities borrowing and lending transactions. This guidance is effective for annual and
interim reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.  The adoption of this standard did not have a material
impact on the consolidated results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity.

3. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURE

On December 1, 2008, the Company and CHA Bio & Diostech Co., Ltd. formed an international joint venture. The
new company, Stem Cell & Regenerative Medicine International, Inc. (“SCRMI”), will develop human blood cells and
other clinical therapies based on the Company’s hemangioblast program, one of the Company’s core technologies.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Company purchased upfront a 33% interest in the joint venture, and will receive
another 7% interest upon fulfilling certain obligations under the agreement over a period of 3 years. The Company’s
contribution includes (a) the uninterrupted use of a portion of its leased facility at the Company’s expense, (b) the
uninterrupted use of certain equipment in the leased facility, and (c) the release of certain of the Company’s research
and science personnel to be employed by the joint venture. In return, for a 60% interest, CHA has agreed to contribute
$150,000 cash and to fund all operational costs in order to conduct the hemangioblast program. Effective May 1,
2010, the Company was no longer obligated to provide laboratory space to SCRMI. As of September 30, 2013, the
Company holds a 40% interest in the joint venture and CHA Bio & Diostech, Ltd. owns a 60% interest. The two
partners to the joint venture are in negotiations on further funding of the joint venture, but there can be no assurances
that an agreement will be reached. Any financial statement impact at this time is unclear should an agreement not be
reached.

The Company has agreed to collaborate with the joint venture in securing grants to further research and development
of its technology. Additionally, SCRMI has agreed to pay the Company a fee of $500,000 for an exclusive, worldwide
license to the hemangioblast Program. The Company recorded $7,353 and $22,059 in license fee revenue for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively, and $7,353 and $22,059 in license fee revenue for the three
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and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, in the consolidated statements of operations, and the
balance of unamortized license fee of $359,069 and $381,127 is included in deferred revenue in the consolidated
balance sheets at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

On July 15, 2011, the Company and CHA Biotech entered into a binding term sheet, with the expectation of entering
into a future definitive agreement, in which the joint venture was realigned around both product development rights
and research responsibilities. Under the terms of the binding term sheet, SCRMI exclusively licensed the rights to the
hemangioblast Program to the Company for United States and Canada and expanded the jurisdictional scope of the
license to CHA Biotech to include Japan (in addition to South Korea, which was already exclusively licensed to CHA
Biotech). As part of the agreement, the scientists at SCRMI involved in the hemangioblast Program were transferred
to the Company, and SCRMI discontinued its research activity and became solely a licensing entity. In order to
maintain its exclusive license the Company is obligated to satisfy certain diligence requirements relating to Licensed
Products – which are defined as “any therapeutic, diagnostic, bioinformatics or other human or veterinarian health care
product and/or service and or research reagent utilizing or derived in any manner whatsoever from the Technology”. In
particular, the Company either needed to meet a minimal research spending requirement of $6.75 million by July 31,
2014, or complete the filing of an IND application or other application for regulatory approval of a Licensed Product.
Intellectual property rights created by the Company in the course of its research are subject to a non-exclusive license
to CHA Biotech for Japan and South Korea, and to SCRMI to be sub-licensable under certain circumstances for
countries other than the United States, Canada, Japan and South Korea. By filing the investigational new animal drug
application on September 12, 2013, with the Federal Drug Administration, the Company has met the commitment
required to maintain its exclusive license.
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The following table is a summary of key financial data for the joint venture as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 and 2012:

September 30,
2013 2012

Current assets $189,866 $179,310
Noncurrent assets $1,227,201 $1,028,102
Current liabilities $294,165 $293,276
Noncurrent liabilities $1,948,582 $2,240,697
Net revenue $219,087 $222,932
Net income $137,901 $150,566

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consisted of the following at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

September
30,

December
31,

2013 2012
Machinery & equipment $1,101,762 $907,740
Computer equipment 46,287 32,986
Office furniture 38,783 6,684
Leasehold improvements 486,691 169,572

1,673,523 1,116,982

Accumulated depreciation (976,496 ) (941,726 )
Property and equipment, net $697,027 $175,256

Depreciation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 amounted to $26,618 and $64,320,
respectively. Depreciation expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 amounted to $10,101 and
$35,541, respectively.
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5. ACCRUED SETTLEMENT

CAMOFI Master LDC

CAMOFI Master LDC (“CAMOFI”) and CAMZHN Master LDC (“CAMZHN” and together with “CAMOFI”, the
“CAMOFI Parties”) filed a complaint on October 13, 2011. In their complaint, the CAMOFI Parties argued that as a
result of the transactions between the Company and JMJ Financial (“JMJ”), Gemini Master Fund, Ltd., and Midsummer
Investment, Ltd., respectively, the exercise prices in the warrants and debentures previously issued to the CAMOFI
Parties should have been reduced. Consequently, the CAMOFI Parties argued that they have been denied the right to
receive, in total, at least 130,795,594 shares of the Company's common stock, which has allegedly resulted in losses to
the CAMOFI Parties of at least $22,265,951.

On January 11, 2013, the Company entered into a settlement agreement and mutual release (the “Settlement
Agreement”) with the CAMOFI Parties. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, and as approved by the Court, the
Company agreed, in exchange for dismissal of the pending lawsuit with prejudice and a mutual release of all claims,
(including termination of all outstanding warrants and debentures of the Company held by the CAMOFI Parties), to
do the following on the business day following approval by the Court of the settlement or on another day agreed upon
by the parties to the settlement (the “Closing”):

·

issue to the CAMOFI Parties an aggregate number of shares of the Company’s common stock calculated by dividing
$4,500,000 by the least of (a) $0.056 per share, (b) the closing price of the common stock on the day immediately
prior to the execution of the Settlement Agreement or (c) the volume weighted average price (“VWAP”) reported by
Bloomberg LP for the 30-day period before such shares of common stock are received (the “Closing Shares”), of
which 78.9% of such Closing Shares will be issued to CAMOFI and 21.1% to CAMZHN;

·
issue (a) to CAMOFI an Amortizing Senior Secured Convertible Debenture in the principal amount of $4,732,781
and (b) to CAMZHN an Amortizing Senior Secured Convertible Debenture in the original principal amount of
$1,267,219 (together, the “Debentures”);

·pay $1,577,594 to CAMOFI and $422,406 to CAMZHN; and

·reimburse the CAMOFI Parties for certain of the CAMOFI Parties’ costs incurred in connection with the pendinglawsuit.
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The Debentures accrue interest at the rate of 8% per annum and mature on June 30, 2015. The Company may pre-pay
all or a portion of the amounts due under the Debentures prior to maturity without penalty. Both of the Debentures are
convertible at the option of the holder at a price per share of the Company’s common stock equal to 80% of the VWAP
of the ten consecutive trading days prior to the conversion date (the “Conversion Price”). The Company must make
quarterly payments under the Debentures on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on March 31, 2013 in
the amount of $600,000. The quarterly payments may, at the option of the Company and subject to the satisfaction of
certain conditions, be paid in shares of the Company’s common stock. In such case, the conversion price for such
payment will be based on the lesser of (i) the Conversion Price or (ii) 80% of the average of the 10 closing prices
immediately prior to the date the quarterly payment is due. To secure its obligations under the Debentures, the
Company will grant a security interest in substantially all of the Company’s assets, including its intellectual property,
to the CAMOFI Parties. The Debentures contain certain covenants customary for debt instruments of its kind. As of
September 30, 2013, the Company was in compliance with the covenants in the Debentures.

On January 22, 2013, the Supreme Court of New York approved the issuance of the shares of the Company’s common
stock that the Company agreed to issue to the CAMOFI Parties pursuant to the Settlement Agreement that was entered
into on January 11, 2013. Accordingly, on January 23, 2013, the Company issued an aggregate of 80,357,143 shares
to the CAMOFI Parties as required by the Settlement Agreement and in reliance upon the exemption from registration
under Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the Company and the CAMOFI Parties entered into a registration rights
agreement, which required the Company to register the shares of the Company’s common stock into which the
Debentures are convertible with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The registration rights agreement provides
that the registration statement will be filed within thirty days of the execution of the registration rights agreement and
that it becomes effective within sixty days or within 90 days in the event of a full review by the Securities and
Exchange Commission. If the Company fails to file the registration statement within the required time period, then the
Company will pay, in cash, partial liquidated damages equal to 1.5% of the original principal amount of the
Debentures. If the Company fails to pay any partial liquidated damages with seven days after the date payable, the
Company will pay interest thereon at a rate of 18% per annum. The Company filed the registration statement on
February 21, 2013 which was within the required time period, and the registration statement was declared effective
March 19, 2013.

At September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, accrued settlements related to the above agreements were $0 and
$6,807,891, respectively.
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6. CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTES

2010 JMJ Convertible Promissory Notes

During 2010, the Company issued three convertible promissory notes to JMJ, for a total of $3,000,000 available to
receive in cash, for a principal sum of $3,850,000, which included an original issue discount of $850,000. The notes
bear a one-time interest charge of 10% on the principal sum. The holder may at its election convert all or part of these
notes into shares of the Company’s common stock at the conversion rate of the lesser of: (a) $0.10 per share, or (b)
85% of the average of the three lowest trade prices in the 20 trading days prior to the conversion. During 2010, the
Company received the entire $3,000,000 on these notes. Of the $3,850,000 borrowed, the Company converted
$3,562,215 into 76,465,706 shares of common stock during 2010.

On May 31, 2013, the Company and JMJ entered into a Mutual Release and Waiver Agreement (“Waiver Agreement”)
whereby JMJ released and discharged the Company from any and all claims connected with the JMJ convertible
promissory notes. At the date of the Waiver Agreement, the convertible promissory note balance was $287,785 and
the conversion option liability associated with the convertible promissory note had a fair value of $150,802. The value
was determined using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions: (1) dividend yield of 0%; (2)
expected volatility of 80%, (3) risk-free interest rate of 0.04%, and (4) expected life of 0.001 years. The Company
recorded a gain on extinguishment of debt of $438,587.
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Interest expense from amortization of debt discounts related to the JMJ convertible promissory notes for the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $0 and $30,935, respectively. Interest expense from amortization of debt
discounts related to the JMJ convertible promissory notes for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012
was $31,976 and $95,231, respectively.

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 the outstanding balance of the JMJ Convertible Promissory Notes
was $0, and $287,785, respectively.

Senior Secured Convertible Debentures

The Debentures issued to the CAMOFI Parties pursuant to the Settlement Agreement have an effective date of
December 31, 2012, accrue interest at the rate of 8% per annum and mature on June 30, 2015. The Company may
pre-pay all or a portion of the amounts due under the Debentures prior to maturity without penalty. Both of the
Debentures are convertible at the option of the holder at a price per share of common stock equal to 80% of VWAP of
the ten consecutive trading days prior to the conversion date. The Company must make quarterly payments under the
Debentures on the last day of each calendar quarter commencing on March 31, 2013 in the amount of $600,000. The
quarterly payments may, at the option of the Company and subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, be paid in
shares of Common Stock. In such case, the conversion price for such payment will be based on the lesser of (i) the
conversion price as defined in the agreement or (ii) 80% of the average of the 10 closing prices immediately prior to
the date the quarterly payment is due. The payment due on March 31, 2013, was paid in cash on April 1, 2013. To
secure its obligations under the Debentures, the Company granted a security interest in substantially all of the
Company’s assets, including its intellectual property, to the CAMOFI Parties. The Debentures contain certain
covenants customary for debt instruments of its kind. At September 30, 2013, the Company was in compliance with
the covenants of the Debentures.

The Company received two conversion notices dated May 30, 2013 and May 31, 2013 for $600,000 each. The
Company issued 10,135,287 shares of its common stock for the May 30, 2013 conversion notice which was
consideration for the June 2013 installment and issued 9,790,976 shares of its common stock for the May 31, 2013
conversion notice, which was consideration for the September 30, 2013 installment.
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As of September 30, 2013, the redemption dates and amounts are as follows:

Redemption
Date Amount
12/31/2013 $600,000
3/31/2014 600,000
6/30/2014 600,000
9/30/2014 600,000
12/31/2014 600,000
3/31/2015 600,000
6/30/2015 600,000

$4,200,000

The Company determined that the Debentures contained an embedded beneficial conversion feature as the Debentures
are convertible at a price per share of common stock equal to 80% of VWAP of the ten consecutive trading days prior
to the conversion date. The embedded beneficial conversion feature was modeled using a binomial lattice model, and
the calculated value at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $703,000 and $845,000, respectively. The
Company recorded a loss of $2,000 and gain of $142,000 for the change in the fair value of the embedded conversion
option liability for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively.
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At September 30, 2013, the Debentures could be converted into 79,750,873 shares of common stock based on a
conversion price of $0.0527. At September 30, 2013, the if-converted value exceeded the principal amount by
approximately $1,486,000.

The Company recorded a debt discount of $725,000, which will be amortized over the life of the note using the
effective interest rate of 16.35%. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company amortized
$87,626 and $374,497 of the debt discount and recorded it as interest expense. The unamortized discount at
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $350,503 and $725,000, respectively. The Company recorded
interest expense of $84,000 and $304,000 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively,
based on the contractual interest rate.

7. Series A-1 REDEEMABLE Convertible Preferred Stock

On March 3, 2009, the Company entered into a $5 million credit facility with Volation Life Sciences Capital Partners,
LLC (“Volation”), a life sciences fund. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company may draw down funds, as
needed, from the investor through the issuance of Series A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock, par value $.001,
at a basis of 1 share of Series A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock for every $10,000 invested. The preferred
stock pays dividends, in kind of preferred stock, at an annual rate of 10%, matures in four years from the initial
drawdown date, and is convertible into common stock at $0.75 per share at the option of the holder.

However, in the event the closing price of the Company’s common stock during the 5 trading days following the notice
to convert falls below 75% of the average of the closing bid price in the 5 trading days prior to the closing date, the
investor may, at its option, and without penalty, decline to purchase the applicable put shares on the closing date.

Modification of Series A-1 Convertible Redeemable Preferred Stock:

On October 19, 2009, the Company entered into two letter agreements with Volation, pursuant to which (i) the
Company reduced the conversion price of its existing outstanding Series A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock
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issued to Volation to $0.10 per share resulting in 22,880,000 shares of common stock upon conversion, (ii) the
Company issued Volation 2,500,000 shares of its common stock at $0.10 per share in payment of an outstanding
commitment fee, and (iii) Volation waived the delinquency in non-payment of the $250,000 commitment fee required
pursuant to the preferred stock purchase agreement between the Company and Volation. The commitment fee was
paid during the year ended December 31, 2010 by reducing the proceeds paid by the Series A-1 Preferred Stock
investors by the amount of the commitment fee.

The Series A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock has been classified within the mezzanine section between
liabilities and equity in the consolidated balance sheets because it is considered conditionally redeemable. The
embedded conversion option has been recorded as a derivative liability in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets,
and changes in the fair value each reporting period are reported in adjustments to fair value of derivatives in the
consolidated statements of operations.

On April 25, 2013, the Company entered into a share exchange agreement with Volation to exchange 27,522,833
freely tradeable shares of the Company’s common stock for Volation’s 113 shares of Series A-1 redeemable convertible
preferred stock and accrued dividends at a negotiated conversion price was $0.06. At the date of the exchange
agreement, the Company had principal and accrued dividends outstanding of $1,651,370. The Company recorded a
finance cost of $261,467 for the difference between the fair value of the shares exchanged and the $1,651,370.

The following table summarizes the Series A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock outstanding at September 30,
2013 and December 31, 2012:

September
30,

December
31,

2013 2012
Principal due $ – $1,130,165
Accrued dividend – 477,332
Debt discount – (8,964 )

$ – $1,598,533

Non-current portion $ – $1,598,533

Aggregate liquidation value* $ – $1,607,497

* Represents the sum of principal due and accrued dividends.
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The dividends are accrued at a rate of 10% per annum, and the Company records the accrual as interest expense in its
consolidated statements of operations in the period incurred. The Company recorded accrued dividends on the Series
A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock of $0 and $43,873 for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2013, respectively, and $34,826 and $100,409 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively,
which was recorded as interest expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

Conversion Option:

The embedded conversion option was valued at $0 and $33 at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively, at fair value using the Black-Scholes model. The decrease in the fair value of the embedded conversion
option liability of $0 and $33 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, respectively, and $1,657 and
$22,354 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively, was recorded through the statements
of operations as an adjustment to fair value of derivatives.

Interest expense from amortization of the debt discount and deferred costs for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2013 was $0 and $117,180, respectively. Interest expense from amortization of the debt discount and
deferred costs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012 was $112,296 and $334,445, respectively.

8. SERIES B PREFERRED STOCK

On November 2, 2009 (“Series B Effective Date”), the Company entered into a preferred stock purchase agreement with
Optimus Life Sciences Capital Partners, LLC (“Optimus”). Pursuant to the purchase agreement, the Company agreed to
sell, and Optimus agreed to purchase, in one or more purchases from time to time at the Company’s sole discretion, (i)
up to 1,000 shares of Series B preferred stock at a purchase price of $10,000 per share, for an aggregate purchase price
of up to $10,000,000, and (ii) five-year warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock with an aggregate
exercise price equal to 135% of the purchase price paid by Optimus, at an exercise price per share as follows:

·
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On the 6th trading day following the Tranche Notice Date (as defined in the purchase agreement), the exercise price
of the Optimus warrant shall be adjusted  to equal the VWAP for the 5 trading days beginning on and including the
Tranche Notice Date (as so adjusted, the “Adjusted Exercise Price”); and

·

If the Adjusted Exercise Price results in additional warrant shares being issuable to the holder, such additional shares
shall be delivered to the holder within one trading day following the adjustment date.  If the Adjusted Exercise Price
results in less warrant shares being issuable to the holder, the excess warrant shares shall be returned by the holder to
the Company within one trading day following on the adjustment date.

The Company agreed to pay to Optimus a commitment fee of $500,000, at the earlier of the closing of the first
Tranche or the six month anniversary of the Series B Effective Date, payable at the Company’s election in cash or
common stock valued at 90% of the volume weighted average price of the Company’s common stock on the 5 trading
days preceding the payment date. The $500,000 commitment fee was outstanding and was recorded in accrued
expenses in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2009. During 2010, the Company issued 50
shares of Series B preferred stock as payment for the commitment fee.

During 2010, the Company delivered tranche notices to Optimus for delivery of a total of 1,000 shares under the
Series B preferred stock for funding in the amount of $10,000,000 ($9,485,000 in cash proceeds, $500,000 of
commitment fee applied, and $15,000 in legal fees).
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During 2010, in connection with the funding, the Company issued 95,870,362 shares of its common stock upon
exercise of the same number of warrants, which were granted simultaneously with the Company’s tranche notices.
During 2010, the Company received secured promissory notes in the amount of $13,500,000 to settle the warrant
exercise.

Dividends

Commencing on the date of the issuance of any shares of Series B preferred stock, holders of Series B preferred stock
will be entitled to receive dividends on each outstanding share of Series B preferred stock, which will accrue in shares
of Series B preferred stock at a rate equal to 10% per annum from the issuance date compounded annually. Accrued
dividends will be payable upon redemption of the Series B preferred stock. Accrued dividends were $3,271,594 and
$2,352,321 at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Redemption Rights

Upon or after the fourth anniversary of the initial issuance date, the Company will have the right, at the Company’s
option, to redeem all or a portion of the shares of the Series B preferred stock, at a price per share equal to 100% of
the Series B liquidation value. The Series B preferred stock may be redeemed at the Company’s option, commencing 4
years from the issuance date at a price per share of (a) $10,000 per share plus accrued but unpaid dividends (the “Series
B Liquidation Value”), or, at a price per share of : (x) 127% of the Series B Liquidation Value if redeemed on or after
the first anniversary but prior to the second anniversary of the initial issuance date, (y) 118% of the Series B
Liquidation Value if redeemed on or after the second anniversary but prior to the third anniversary of the initial
issuance date, and (z) 109% of the Series B Liquidation Value if redeemed on or after the third anniversary but prior
to the fourth anniversary of the initial issuance date.

Liquidation Rights
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The Series B preferred stock shall, with respect to dividend, rights upon liquidation, winding-up or dissolution, rank:
(i) senior to the Company’s common stock, and any other class or series of preferred stock of the Company, except the
Series A-1 redeemable convertible preferred stock which shall rank senior in right of liquidation and pari passu with
respect to dividends; and (ii) junior to all existing and future indebtedness of the Company.

If the Company determines to liquidate, dissolve or wind-up its business, it must redeem the Series B preferred stock
at the prices set forth above. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company the holders of Series B
preferred stock shall be first entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its
stockholders an amount with respect to each share of Series B preferred stock equal to $10,000, plus any accrued and
unpaid dividends.

The Company has classified the Series B preferred stock in the equity section in its consolidated balance sheets.

Related Secured Promissory Notes Receivable:

In accordance with the terms of the Series B preferred stock agreement, Optimus issued to the Company a secured
promissory note in consideration for exercising warrants under each tranche. The value of each secured promissory
note equals the value of the warrants that Optimus received. Interest on the notes accrues at 2% per year,
compounding annually if the interest remains unpaid at the end of each year. The notes are secured by freely tradable
marketable securities belonging to Optimus. Each promissory note matures on the fourth anniversary of its issuance.
As of September 30, 2013, Optimus has issued $13,500,000 in secured promissory notes.

In the event the Company redeems all or a portion of any shares of Series B preferred stock held by Optimus, the
Company will be permitted to offset the full amount of such proceeds against amounts outstanding under the
promissory notes. Accordingly, the Company included the discounted value of the secured promissory notes as a
separate component of stockholders’ deficit at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

At September 30, 2013, the value of the secured promissory notes in the consolidated balance sheet was $13,246,062,
net of discounts of $906,998 and accrued interest of $653,060, reflecting a face value of $13,500,000.
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At December 31, 2012, the value of the secured promissory notes in the consolidated balance sheet was $12,328,558,
net of discounts of $1,641,001 and accrued interest of $469,559, reflecting a face value of $13,500,000.

The Company determined that a 10% discount is appropriate, in order to consistently reflect the Company’s cost of
borrowing under the terms of the underlying Series B preferred stock that permits offset. The Company recorded an
initial discount on the promissory notes in the amount of $3,519,238 during the year ended December 31, 2010. The
Company accretes interest at 10% over the respective four-year terms of the promissory notes.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company accreted interest on the promissory notes
in the amount of $315,546 and $917,504, respectively, and during the three and nine months ended September 30,
2012, the Company accreted interest on the promissory notes in the amount of $286,132 and $834,491, respectively,
which was recorded in accumulated deficit during the periods then ended. The Company recorded dividends on its
Series B preferred stock during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 of $316,154 and $919,273,
respectively and $286,684 and $836,100 during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012, respectively.
The accrued dividends are offset by the accretion of the note receivable discount.

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 1,000 shares of Series B preferred stock were outstanding. As of
September 30, 2013, the Company has drawn the entire commitment of $10,000,000.

Below is a table showing the net settlement amount at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

September
30,

December
31,

2013 2012

Face Value of Preferred Stock $10,000,000 $10,000,000
Accrued Dividends $3,271,594 $2,352,321
Redemption factor 109% 118%
Conversion price $14,466,037 $14,575,739
Receivable $14,153,057 $13,969,559
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Net settlement upon conversion $312,980 $606,180

9. SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK

On December 30, 2010 (the “Series C Effective Date”), the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the
“Series C Purchase Agreement”) with Socius CG II, Ltd., a Bermuda exempted company (“Socius”). Pursuant to the
Series C Purchase Agreement:

·

The Company agreed to sell, and Socius agreed to purchase, in one or more purchases from time to time (each such
purchase, a “Series C Tranche”) in the Company’s sole discretion (subject to the conditions set forth therein), (i) up to
2,500 shares of Series C preferred stock at a purchase price of $10,000 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of
up to $25,000,000, and (ii) a two-year warrant (the “Socius Warrant”) obligating Socius to purchase shares of the
Company’s common stock  with an aggregate exercise price equal to 20% of the purchase price paid by Socius for
the Series C preferred stock sold in each Series C Tranche, at an exercise price per share equal to the closing bid
price of the Company’s common stock on the date the Company provides notice of such Series C Tranche (the “Series
C Tranche Notice”). On each date that the Company delivers a Series C Tranche Notice to Socius, Socius shall also
become obligated, pursuant to a right automatically vesting on such Series C Tranche Notice date, to purchase that
number of shares of common stock (such shares of common stock, the “Additional Investment Shares”) equal in dollar
amount to 100% of the Series C Tranche amount set forth in the Series C Tranche Notice at a price per share equal
to the closing bid price of the Company’s common stock on the Series C Tranche Notice date.

·
The Series C Purchase Agreement requires that, when the Company requests Socius to purchase a tranche of Series
C preferred stock, the mandatory purchase by Socius of the related Additional Investment Shares must occur no later
than sixty (60) calendar days following the Series C Tranche Notice date.
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·

The Socius Warrant was issued to Socius on December 30, 2010 (the “Closing Date”) simultaneous with entering into
the Series C Purchase Agreement. The Socius Warrant was issued with an initial exercise price per warrant of $0.16
per share and for a total of up to 31,250,000 shares, subject to adjustment as described therein. On January 10, 2011,
Socius and the Company entered into a letter agreement in which the parties agreed that, following arms-length
negotiations and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Socius Warrant, that the initial number of shares
issuable under the Socius Warrant, subject to the adjustment mechanism set forth therein, was equal to 30,000,000.

·

As required by the Series C Purchase Agreement, the Socius Warrant must be exercised for such number of shares
of common stock equal in amount to 20% of the cumulative purchase price paid by Socius for the Series C preferred
stock. The maximum amount of Series C preferred stock that Socius may become obligated to purchase under all
Series C Tranches is $25,000,000. Assuming the maximum drawdown of $25,000,000 by the Company under the
Series C Purchase Agreement, Socius would be required to exercise the Socius Warrant to purchase 20% of this total
dollar amount, or $5,000,000 worth of the Company’s common stock.

·
The letter agreement entered into on January 10, 2011, modified the Socius Warrant only with respect to the
initial number of underlying shares and expressly provides that, except as so modified, the Socius Warrant shall
remain unchanged and shall continue in full force and effect.

·

At the initial closing pursuant to the Series C Purchase Agreement, which occurred on the Closing Date, (i) Socius
purchased 400 shares of Series C preferred stock and the Company received gross proceeds of  $4,000,000. (ii) the
Company delivered to Socius an initial warrant (the “Initial Warrant”) obligating Socius to purchase shares of its
common stock with an aggregate purchase price of $800,000, which shall be automatically exercisable on the date a
registration statement for the resale of all shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the Series C Purchase
Agreement is declared effective (which effectiveness occurred on April 13, 2011), with delivery of such shares made
to Socius on the trading day immediately following the exercise date at a per-share price equal to the closing bid
price of the Company’s common stock on the delivery date, and (iii) Socius became obligated to purchase additional
shares of common stock equal in aggregate dollar amount to $4,000,000 (such shares of common stock the “Initial
Investment Shares”), with delivery of such shares made to Socius on the trading day immediately following the date
the registration statement is declared effective at a price per share equal to the closing bid price of the Company’s
common stock on the delivery date.

·The Company agreed to pay to Socius a commitment fee of $1,250,000 (the “Commitment Fee”), at the earlier of the
closing of the first Series C Tranche or the six month anniversary of the Series C Effective Date.   This Commitment
Fee is payable solely at the Company’s election, in cash or in the alternative, in shares of common stock valued at
88% of the volume weighted average price of the Company’s common stock on the 5 trading days preceding the
payment date. If the Company elects to pay the Commitment Fee in shares of its common stock, no cash payment
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would be due as the issuance of shares would satisfy the Commitment Fee obligation in full. The Company issued
7,562,008 shares of its common stock on September 30, 2011 as full payment of the commitment fee.

·

The Company agreed to use its best efforts to file within 60 days of the Series C Effective Date, and cause to
become effective as soon as possible thereafter, a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange
Commission for the resale of all shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the Series C Purchase Agreement,
including the shares of common stock underlying the Socius Warrant, shares of the common stock issuable upon
exercise of the Initial Warrant, shares of common stock issuable as Initial Investment Shares, shares of common
stock issuable as Additional Investment Shares, and shares of common stock issuable in payment of the
Commitment Fee.

·

In the event that Socius does not comply with its obligations under the Series C Purchase Agreement (including its
obligations to exercise the Socius Warrant), the Series C Purchase Agreement provides that, in addition to being
entitled to exercise all rights provided therein or granted by law, the Company would be entitled to seek specific
performance by Socius under the Series C Purchase Agreement and the Socius Warrant.
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On December 30, 2010, in accordance with the Series C Purchase Agreement, the Company filed a certificate of
designations for the Series C preferred stock with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. As previously
reported, pursuant to the certificate of designations, the Series C preferred stock shall, with respect to dividend, rights
upon liquidation, winding-up or dissolution, rank: (i) senior to the Company’s common stock, and any other class or
series of preferred stock of the Company (collectively, with any warrants, rights, calls or options exercisable for or
convertible into such preferred stock, the “Junior Securities”); provided, however, the Series A-1 redeemable convertible
preferred stock and Series B preferred stock (together, the “Senior Securities”) shall rank senior in right of redemption,
liquidation, and dividends; and (ii) junior to all existing and future indebtedness of the Company.

As of September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company has drawn $17,500,000 of the $25,000,000
commitment, respectively.

Dividends

Commencing on the date of the issuance of any shares of Series C preferred stock, holders of Series C preferred stock
will be entitled to receive dividends on each outstanding share of Series C preferred stock, which will accrue in shares
of Series C preferred stock at a rate equal to 6% per annum from the issuance date compounded annually. Accrued
dividends will be payable upon redemption of the Series C preferred stock. Accrued dividends were $2,164,813, and
$1,325,333 at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Redemption Rights

Upon or after the fourth anniversary of the initial issuance date, the Company will have the right, at the Company’s
option, to redeem all or a portion of the shares of the Series C preferred stock, at a price per share equal to 100% of
the Series C liquidation value. The Series C preferred stock may be redeemed at the Company’s option, commencing 4
years from the issuance date at a price per share of (a) $10,000 per share plus accrued but unpaid dividends (the “Series
C Liquidation Value”), or, at a price per share of : (i) 136% of the Series C Liquidation Value if redeemed prior to the
first anniversary of the initial issuance date, (ii) 127% of the Series C Liquidation Value if redeemed on or after the
first anniversary but prior to the second anniversary of the initial issuance date, (iii) 118% of the Series C Liquidation
Value if redeemed on or after the second anniversary but prior to the third anniversary of the initial issuance date, and
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(iv) 109% of the Series C Liquidation Value if redeemed on or after the third anniversary but prior to the fourth
anniversary of the initial issuance date.

Termination and Liquidation Rights

If the Company determines to liquidate, dissolve or wind-up its business, it must redeem the Series C preferred stock
at the prices set forth above. Upon any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, the holders of Series C
preferred stock shall be first entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Company available for distribution to its
stockholders an amount with respect to each share of Series C preferred stock equal to $10,000, plus any accrued and
unpaid dividends.

Related Secured Promissory Notes Receivable:

As of September 30, 2013, Socius has issued $21,000,000 in notes receivable in accordance with the terms of the
Series C Purchase Agreement.

Interest on the notes accrues at 2% per year, compounding annually if the interest remains unpaid at the end of each
year. The notes are secured by freely tradable marketable securities belonging to Socius. Each promissory note
matures on the fourth anniversary of its issuance.

In the event the Company redeems all or a portion of any shares of Series C preferred stock held by Socius, the
Company will be permitted to offset the full amount of such proceeds against amounts outstanding under the
promissory notes. Accordingly, the Company included the discounted value of the secured promissory notes as a
separate component of stockholders’ deficit at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

At September 30, 2013, the value of the secured promissory notes in the consolidated balance sheet was $20,153,376,
net of discounts of $1,562,702 and accrued interest of $716,078, reflecting a face value of $21,000,000.
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At December 31, 2012, the value of the secured promissory notes in the consolidated balance sheet was $19,294,139,
net of discounts of $2,135,527 and accrued interest of $429,666, reflecting a face value of $21,000,000.

The Company determined that a 6% discount is appropriate, in order to consistently reflect the Company’s cost of
borrowing under the terms of the underlying Series C preferred stock that permits offset. The Company recorded an
initial discount on the promissory notes in the amount of $1,968,050 during the year ended December 31, 2011 and an
additional $1,026,809 of debt discounts during the year ended December 31, 2012 related to the fifth, sixth and
seventh tranche notice. The Company accretes interest at 6% over the respective four-year terms of the promissory
notes.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company accreted interest on the promissory note in
the amount of $295,494 and $859,238, respectively and during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012,
the Company accreted interest on the promissory note in the amount of $259,613 and $666,181, respectively, which
was recorded in accumulated deficit during the periods then ended. The Company recorded dividends on its Series C
preferred stock during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013 of $287,203 and $839,480, respectively
and recorded dividends of $252,319 and $651,615 during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2012,
respectively. The accrued dividends are offset by the accretion of the note receivable discount.

The Company has classified the Series C preferred stock in the equity section in its consolidated balance sheets. As of
September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 1,750 shares of Series C preferred stock were outstanding.

Below is a table showing the net settlement amount at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

September
30,

December
31,

2013 2012

Face Value of Preferred Stock $17,500,000 $17,500,000
Accrued Dividends $2,164,813 $1,325,333
Redemption factor 118% 118%
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Conversion price $23,204,479 $22,213,893
Receivable $21,716,080 $21,429,666
Net settlement upon conversion $1,488,399 $784,227

10. WARRANT SUMMARY

Warrant Activity

A summary of warrant activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic

Number of Exercise Contractual Value

Warrants Price $ Life (in
years) (000) $

Outstanding,
December 31,
2012

21,757,421 0.18 1.88 –

Granted – –
Exercised – –
Forfeited/Canceled (13,927,538) 0.13
Outstanding,
September 30,
2013

7,829,883 0.28 2.08

Exercisable,
September 30,
2013

7,829,883 0.28 2.08 –

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is before applicable income taxes and is calculated based on the
difference between the exercise price of the warrants and the quoted price of the Company’s common stock as of the
reporting date.

24

Edgar Filing: ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Form 10-Q

49



ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes information about warrants outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2013:

Warrants Outstanding and Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Average

Exercise Number Remaining Exercise
Price $ of Shares Life (Years) Price $
.10 - .11 3,239,247 1.18 0.10
.20 - .30 1,630,000 2.25 0.25
.38 - .39 1,330,636 3.82 0.39
.40 - .45 815,000 2.25 0.45
0.70 815,000 2.25 0.70

7,829,883

11. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

On September 19, 2012, the Company entered into a purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Lincoln Park
Capital Fund, LLC (“Lincoln Park”). Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Company has the right to sell to Lincoln
Park up to $35,000,000 in shares of its common stock. Upon signing the Purchase Agreement, Lincoln Park purchased
10,000,000 shares of the Company’s common stock for $800,000 as the initial purchase. In addition, the Company
issued 8,750,000 shares of common stock to Lincoln Park as a commitment fee.

Upon the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, including the registration statement for
the resale of the shares issued thereunder being declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission (which
effectiveness occurred on November 6, 2012), the Company has the right over a 36-month period to sell up to an
additional $34.2 million worth of shares of its common stock to Lincoln Park, upon the terms set forth in the Purchase
Agreement. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the purchase price of such shares will be based on the prevailing
market price of the Company’s common stock immediately preceding the time of sales, with the Company controlling
the timing and amount of any future sales, if any, of common stock to Lincoln Park. There are no upper limits to the
price Lincoln Park may pay to purchase the Company’s common stock. Lincoln Park shall not have the right or the
obligation to purchase any shares of common stock on any business day that the closing price of the Company’s
common stock is below a floor price as provided in the Purchase Agreement. The purchase price means, with respect
to any regular purchase, the lower of: (i) the lowest sale price on the applicable purchase date and (ii) the arithmetic
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average of the three (3) lowest closing sale prices for the common stock during the ten (10) consecutive business days
ending on the business day immediately preceding such purchase date (in each case, to be appropriately adjusted for
any reorganization, recapitalization, non-cash dividend, stock split or other similar transaction that occurs on or after
the date of this Purchase Agreement. However, the purchase price cannot be below $0.03.

From January 1, 2013 to September 30, 2013, Lincoln Park purchased 237,607,759 shares of common stock for cash
proceeds of $16,844,532.

On January 23, 2013, the Company issued an aggregate of 80,357,143 shares to the CAMOFI Parties as required by
the Settlement Agreement and in reliance upon the exemption from registration under Section 3(a)(10) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended. On May 30, 2013 in connection with the settlement CAMOFI converted
$600,000 in Debentures for 10,135,287 shares of common stock. On May 31, 2013 in connection with the settlement
the CAMOFI converted $600,000 in Debentures for 9,790,976 shares of common stock.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company issued various board members 3,124,542 shares of
common stock valued at $227,938 as compensation for board services.
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During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, the Company issued 6,857,144 shares of common stock valued at
$1,044,426 as executive compensation.

On April 23, 2013, the Company entered into a share exchange agreement with Volation to exchange 27,522,833
freely tradeable shares of the Company’s common stock for Volation’s 113 shares of Series A-1 redeemable convertible
preferred stock and accrued dividends.

12. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Stock Plans

Options/Shares
Options/Shares Options Available

Stock Plan Issued Outstanding For Grant Total
Authorized

2004 Stock Plan 2,492,000 70,000 1,215,104 2,800,000
2004 Stock Plan II 1,301,161 1,071,161 – 1,301,161
2005 Stock Plan 149,566,004 117,941,097 300,259,531 449,825,535

153,359,165 119,082,258 301,474,635 453,926,696

Stock Option Activity

A summary of option activity for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
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Number of Exercise Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Life (in
years) Value

Outstanding, December 31, 2012 100,672,803 $ 0.22 7.45
Granted 22,100,000 0.08
Exercised – –
Forfeited/canceled (3,690,545 ) 0.19
Outstanding, September 30, 2013 119,082,258 $ 0.19 7.10 $ 34,991

Vested and expected to vest at September 30, 2013 116,378,746 $ 0.19 7.05 $ 34,991

Exercisable, September 30, 2013 98,286,015 $ 0.21 6.64 $ 34,991

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above is before applicable income taxes and is calculated based on the
difference between the exercise price of the options and the quoted price of the Company’s common stock as of the
reporting date.
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at September 30, 2013.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average

Exercise Number Exercise Remaining Number Exercise Remaining
Price of Shares Price Life (Years) of Shares Price Life (Years)
$0.05 - 0.058 2,570,000 $ 0.06 9.03 2,570,000 $0.06 9.03
0.08 - 0.09 32,892,647 0.08 8.42 15,434,121 0.09 7.17
0.10 - 0.157 40,258,102 0.13 6.92 39,587,052 0.13 6.90
0.185 - 0.21 26,267,499 0.19 6.99 24,600,832 0.19 6.93
0.25 - 0.45 11,071,161 0.36 7.06 10,071,161 0.36 6.99
0.85 5,417,849 0.85 0.65 5,417,849 0.85 0.65
$1.35 - 2.48 605,000  $2.02 2.12 605,000 $2.02 2.12

119,082,258 98,286,015

The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of options granted using the Black-Scholes option- pricing model
for options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

September 30,  September 30,
2013 2012

Risk-free interest rate 0.76 - 1.91% 1.04%
Expected life of the options 5.00 - 6.50 years 6.26 years
Expected volatility 160% 160%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected forfeitures 13% 13%

The weighted average grant-date fair value for the options granted during the nine months ended September 30, 2013
and 2012 was $0.08 and $0.10, respectively.

Stock-based compensation expense to employees for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2013, was
$856,646 and $2,650,530, respectively. Stock-based compensation expense to employees for the three and nine
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months ended September 30, 2012, was $798,746 and $2,896,236, respectively. The compensation expense related to
the unvested options as of September 30, 2013, was $1,516,536, which will be recognized over the weighted average
period of 8.05 years.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Loss Contingency Accrual

The loss contingency accrual is comprised of the following at September 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

September
30,

December
31,

2013 2012
SEC Civil Action $4,086,619 $3,500,000
Warrant Holder Claim 3,208,500 2,506,500
Debenture Settlement 233,777 170,287
Total $7,528,896 $6,176,787

Securities and Exchange Commission – Civil Action

In May 2012, the Company was named as a defendant in a civil action brought by the Securities and Exchange
Commission related to transactions involving the sale and issuance of the Company’s securities. The Securities and
Exchange Commission alleges that Company violated Section 5(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
because certain sales of shares to outside organizations, completed in late 2008 and early 2009 under the Company’s
former management, resulted in $3.5 million in proceeds to the Company, were neither registered under the Securities
act nor subject to an exemption from registration under Section 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In
addition, the Company is alleged to have violated Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act because the Company did not
disclose the sale and issuance of the shares to the Securities and Exchange Commission on a timely basis. The
Company has accrued approximately $4.1 million to “loss contingency accrual” in the consolidated balance sheet.
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ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Warrant Holder Claim

The Company received a copy of Gary D. Aronson’s Creditor’s Claim (the “Claim”) in the amount of $27,909,706, dated
July 13, 2011, against the Estate of William Caldwell (“Decedent”), who at the time of his death was the Chief
Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Claim states that Decedent’s liability
arises under a cause of action that the Claimant intends to file in Federal court against the Company for violations of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), including Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
and the rules promulgated thereunder.

In the Claim, the Claimant alleges that in September 2005, he entered into a Settlement Agreement with the Company
pursuant to which he received a warrant to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock. In the Claim, the
Claimant makes several allegations against the Company including that in reliance on misinformation provided to him
by the Decedent he exercised his warrant to purchase the Company’s Common Stock at an inflated price and received
fewer shares than he was owed by the Company under the terms of his warrant, that the Company breached the
Claimant’s warrant by not timely issuing stock after the warrant was exercised, and that the Company failed to provide
proper notice of certain events that allegedly triggered the Claimant’s purported rights to additional shares under the
warrant. Claimant previously had brought an action against the Company, in October 2007, with respect to a dispute
over the interpretation of the warrant but dismissed that action without prejudice the day before trial was to begin.

On August 23, 2011, Gary Aronson filed suit in federal court in Massachusetts against Advanced Cell Technology,
Inc. and Wilmington Trust, N.A., as Special Administrator of the Estate of Decedent William Mackay Caldwell. The
suit reasserts allegations made in the Claim. On August 25, 2011, John S. Gorton filed a substantially similar lawsuit.
Aronson and Gorton then filed substantially similar First Amended Complaints.

The Company and Decedent moved to dismiss Aronson’s and Gorton’s First Amended Complaints. On July 16, 2012, a
United States Magistrate Judge issued a report and recommendation concerning the Company’s and Decedent’s motions
to dismiss. The district court adopted the report and recommendation, dismissing all claims, including those asserting
material misrepresentations in violation of the Exchange Act, except for one breach-of-contract claim against the
Company concerning a warrant allegedly issued to William Woodward in breach of the warrants issued to Aronson
and Gorton. Aronson and Gorton filed motions for leave to file Second Amended Complaints on October 23, 2012
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and October 25, 2012. The Company did not oppose the motions. The Second Amended Complaints, deemed filed as
of November 9 and 12, 2012, reasserted the claim for breach of contract with respect to the Woodward warrant, as
well as new breach-of-contract claims against the Company related to a warrant allegedly issued to Deron Colby, an
alleged extension of the exercise periods for stock warrants issued to Andwell, LLC and Nancy Burrows, and alleged
stock sales in 2008 that are the subject of a matter pending in the United States District Court for the Middle District
of Florida, S.E.C. v. Lefkowitz. The Second Amended Complaints asserted no claims against the Decedent. The
Company moved to dismiss the second, third, and fourth counts of the Second Amended Complaints on November 30,
2012. A United States Magistrate Judge issued a report and recommendation concerning the motion to dismiss. The
district court adopted the report and recommendation, denying the motions to dismiss as to the second and third counts
of the Second Amended Complaints, and granting the motion to dismiss the fourth count with leave to amend. On
September 25 and 26, 2013, Aronson and Gorton filed their Third Amended Complaints. On October 15, 2013, the
Company answered Aronson’s Third Amended Complaint and moved to dismiss Gorton’s Third Amended Complaint
for lack of subject-matter jurisdiction.
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(Unaudited)

Pursuant to the employment agreement between the Company and the Decedent, the Company has to indemnify and
hold Decedent harmless from costs, expenses or liability arising out of or relating to any acts or decisions made by
Decedent in the course of his employment to the same extent that the Company indemnifies and holds harmless other
officers and directors of the company in accordance with the Company’s established policies. Our directors and
officers are indemnified by our bylaws against amounts actually and necessarily incurred by them in connection with
the defense of any action, suit or proceeding in which they are a party by reason of being or having been directors or
officers of the Company. Our certificate of incorporation provides that none of our directors or officers shall be
personally liable for damages for breach of any fiduciary duty as a director or officer involving any act or omission of
any such director or officer. Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, may be permitted to such directors, officers and controlling persons pursuant to the foregoing

The Company determined that an accrual was necessary at September 30, 2013, which is included in the “loss
contingency accrual” amount on the consolidated balance sheets.

Debenture Settlement

The Company continues to negotiate with the remaining holders of convertible promissory notes and warrants that
were issued between 2005 and 2010. The Company anticipates that the number of common shares to be issued will be
approximately 3.3 million, based on the settlements that have already been finalized as of September 30, 2013. The
Company determined that an accrual of approximately $234,000 was appropriate at September 30, 2013, which is
included in the “loss contingency accrual” amount on the consolidated balance sheets.

Employment Contracts

The Company has entered into employment contracts with certain executives and research personnel. The contracts
provide for salaries, bonuses and stock option grants, along with other employee, and post-employment benefits.

Agreements
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On May 4, 2012, the Company entered into an exclusive license agreement with StemLifeLine, Inc. in which the
Company obtained exclusive rights, with the right to sublicense, for commercial use of certain human stem cell lines
that were created by StemLifeLine using the Company’s single blastomere technology – i.e., without destruction of any
embryos.  These lines are intended to be used in the Company’s manufacture of cell therapy products.  The Company
paid a single one-time fee of $65,000 to StemLifeLine for the exclusive license, and will not owe any further fees or
royalties under the exclusive license. In addition to the exclusive license, the Company also obtained a non-exclusive
license to distribute other human embryonic stem cell lines made by StemLifeLine, Inc. through stem cell banks, such
as in collaboration with Roslin Cells Inc. with whom the Company had a preexisting hES cell banking agreement. 
Under the terms of the non-exclusive license relating to cell bank distribution, the Company will pay the first
$200,000 in revenue that the Company receives from the cell bank, and 20% of any such revenue thereafter.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On October 22, 2013, the Company held its annual meeting of the stockholders. During the meeting, the stockholders
approved an Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation, which provides for an increase in the
authorized number of shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share, from 2,750,000 to
3,750,000. The Certificate of Amendment became effective upon its filing with the Secretary of State of the State of
Delaware on October 24, 2013.
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” that involve risks and uncertainties, as well
as assumptions that, if they never materialize or prove incorrect, could cause our results to differ materially and
adversely from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements may
include, but are not limited to, statements relating to our outlook or expectations for earnings, revenues, expenses,
volatility of our common stock, financial condition or other future financial or business performance, strategies,
expectations, or business prospects, or the impact of legal, regulatory or supervisory matters on our business, results of
operations or financial condition.

Forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as “estimate,” “plan,” “project,” “forecast,” “intend,”
“expect,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “seek,” “target” or similar expressions. Forward-looking statements reflect our judgment based
on currently available information and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to
differ materially from those described in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to
such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” included elsewhere in
this Form 10-Q and in our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including our Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2013. Additionally, there may be
other factors that could preclude us from realizing the predictions made in the forward-looking statements. We operate
in a continually changing business environment and new factors emerge from time to time. We cannot predict such
factors or assess the impact, if any, of such factors on our financial position or results of operations. All
forward-looking statements included in this Form 10-Q speak only as of the date of this Form 10-Q and you are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Except as required by law, we
undertake no obligation to publicly update or release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect any
events or circumstances after the date of this Form 10-Q or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Overview

We are a life science company focused on the emerging field of regenerative medicine. Our core business strategy is
to develop and ultimately commercialize stem cell derived cell therapies and biologics that will deliver safe and
efficacious patient therapies, and which can be manufactured at scale and are reimbursable at attractive levels. We are
conducting several ongoing clinical trials for treating macular degeneration, and our preclinical development pipeline
focuses on products for eye diseases, autoimmune and inflammatory diseases, and wound healing.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon consolidated financial
statements and condensed consolidated financial statements that we have prepared in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, or GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make a number
of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in the
condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this report. We base our estimates
on historical information, when available, and assumptions believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following accounting policies to be critical to the estimates used in the preparation of our financial
statements.

Use of Estimates — These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP and,
accordingly, require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Specifically, the Company’s management has estimated loss contingencies related to outstanding
litigation. In addition, Management has estimated variables used to calculate the Black-Scholes option pricing model
used to value derivative instruments and the Company estimates the fair value of the embedded conversion option
associated with the senior secured convertible debentures using a binomial lattice model as discussed below under
“Fair Value Measurements”. Also, management has estimated the expected economic life and value of the our licensed
technology, our net operating loss for tax purposes, share-based payments for compensation to employees, directors,
consultants and investment banks, and the useful lives of the fixed assets and its accounts receivable allowance.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Deferred Issuance Cost—Payments, either in cash or share-based payments, made in connection with the sale of
debentures are recorded as deferred debt issuance costs and amortized using the effective interest method over the
lives of the related debentures.

Fair Value Measurements—On January 1, 2008, we adopted FASB ASC 820-10, “Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures.” FASB ASC 820-10 defines fair value, and establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosures
of fair value measurement that enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measures. The carrying amounts
reported in the consolidated balance sheets for receivables and current liabilities each qualify as financial instruments
and are a reasonable estimate of their fair values because of the short period of time between the origination of such
instruments and their expected realization and their current market rate of interest. The three levels of valuation
hierarchy are defined as follows:

·Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

·
Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of
the financial instrument.

·Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

Management analyzes all financial instruments with features of both liabilities and equity under ASC 480,
“Distinguishing Liabilities From Equity” and ASC 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.” Derivative liabilities are
adjusted to reflect fair value at each period end, with any increase or decrease in the fair value being recorded in
results of operations as adjustments to fair value of derivatives. The effects of interactions between embedded
derivatives are calculated and accounted for in arriving at the overall fair value of the financial instruments. In
addition, the fair values of freestanding derivative instruments such as warrant and option derivatives are valued using
the Black-Scholes model. The fair value of certain conversion features was calculated using a binomial model.

Revenue Recognition—Our revenue is generated from license and research agreements with collaborators. Licensing
revenue is recognized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the life of the license or the estimated economic life
of the patents related to the license. Deferred revenue represents the portion of the license and other payments
received that has not been earned. Costs associated with the license revenue are deferred and recognized over the same
term as the revenue. Reimbursements of research expense pursuant to grants are recorded in the period during which
collection of the reimbursement becomes assured, because the reimbursements are subject to approval.

Stock Based Compensation—We record stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, “Compensation –
Stock Compensation.” ASC 718 requires companies to measure compensation cost for stock-based employee
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compensation at fair value at the grant date and recognize the expense over the employee’s requisite service period. We
recognize in the statement of operations the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based
compensation issued to employees and non-employees. 
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Comparison of Three Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

Three Months Ended
September 30,

2013 2012 $ Change %
Change

Revenue $39,468 $68,184 $(28,716 ) -42.1%
Cost of revenue 15,609 15,609 – 0.0%
Gross profit 23,859 52,575 (28,716 ) -54.6%
Research and development expenses 2,898,253 2,363,098 535,155 22.6%
General and administrative expenses 3,211,866 2,695,020 516,846 19.2%
Non-operating income (expense) 381,138 (3,502,708) 3,883,846 -110.9%
Net loss $(5,705,122) $(8,508,251) $2,803,129 -32.9%

Revenue

Revenue relates to license fees and royalties collected that are being amortized over the period of the license granted.
Revenue was $39,468 for the three months ended September 30, 2013, which was a decrease of $28,716 or 42.1%
compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012. The decrease is due to license agreements that expired in
2013. Deferred revenue of $1,947,042 as of September 30, 2013, will be amortized and recorded to revenue over
approximately 13 years.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses consist mainly of payroll and payroll related expenses for our scientific
staff, services attained in connection with our ongoing clinical trials and pre-clinical programs, our R&D and GMP
facilities, and research supplies and materials. R&D expenditures increased from $2,363,098 for the three months
ended September 30, 2012 to $2,898,253 for the three months ended September 30, 2013, for an increase of $535,155
or 22.6%. The increase in R&D expenditures was primarily due to an increase in payroll and related expense of
approximately $179,000, consistent with our expansion of our R&D staff. Other items that contributed to the increase
in overall R&D spending in the three months ended September 30, 2013, include an increase of approximately
$130,000 in spending on our pre-clinical programs, an increase in our clinical trial expenses of approximately
$91,000, as we continue to screen, enroll and treat patients in our age-related macular degeneration (“AMD”) trial and
our Stargardt’s macular degeneration trials. We also realized an increase of $81,000 in our occupancy costs due to the
additional lab and manufacturing space rented in our Marlborough facility.
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Our R&D expenses are primarily associated with basic and pre-clinical research and our clinical development
programs, exclusively in the field of human stem cell therapies and regenerative medicine. Our focus is on
development of our technologies in cellular reprogramming, reduced complexity applications, and stem cell
differentiation. These expenses represent both pre-clinical and clinical development costs and costs associated with
support activities such as quality control and regulatory processes. The cost of our research and development
personnel is the most significant category of R&D expense; however, we also incur expenses with third parties,
including license agreements, sponsored research programs and consulting expenses.

We do not segregate R&D costs by project because our research is focused exclusively on human stem cell therapies
as a unitary field of study. Although we have three principal areas of focus for our research, these areas are
intertwined and have not yet matured to the point where they are separate and distinct projects. The intellectual
property, scientists and other resources dedicated to these efforts are not separately allocated to individual projects,
since the research is conducted on an integrated basis.

We expect that R&D expenses to increase modestly from quarter to quarter for the foreseeable future. The rate of
increase for any given quarter will be impacted by the timing of enrollment, and treatment of clinical trial patients
along with interim results of our many pre-clinical programs. The amount and timing of these fluctuations can be
difficult to predict due to the uncertainty inherent in the timing and extent of progress in our research programs,
initiation of new clinical trials and rate of progression of existing clinical trials. In addition, the results from our basic
research and pre-clinical trials, as well as the results of trials of similar therapeutics under development by others, will
influence the number, size and duration of current and future trials. As our research efforts mature, we will continue to
review the direction of our research based on an assessment of the value of possible commercial applications
emerging from these efforts. Based on this continuing review, we expect to establish discrete research programs and
evaluate the cost and potential for cash inflows from commercializing products, partnering with others in the
biotechnology or pharmaceutical industry, or licensing the technologies associated with these programs to third
parties.
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We believe that it is not possible at this stage to provide a meaningful estimate of the total cost to complete our
ongoing projects and bring any proposed products to market. The use of human embryonic stem cells as a therapy is
an emerging area of medicine, and it is not known what clinical trials will be required by the FDA in order to gain
marketing approval. Costs to complete could vary substantially depending upon the projects selected for development,
the number of clinical trials required and the number of patients needed for each study. It is possible that the
completion of these studies could be delayed for a variety of reasons, including difficulties in enrolling patients,
delays in manufacturing, incomplete or inconsistent data from the pre-clinical or clinical trials, and difficulties
evaluating the trial results. Any delay in completion of a trial would increase the cost of that trial, which would harm
our results of operations. Due to these uncertainties, we cannot reasonably estimate the size, nature nor timing of the
costs to complete, or the amount or timing of the net cash inflows from our current activities. Until we obtain further
relevant pre-clinical and clinical data, we will not be able to estimate our future expenses related to these programs or
when, if ever, and to what extent we will receive cash inflows from resulting products.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative (“G & A”) expenses for the three months ended September 30, 2013 was $3,211,866, as
compared to the three months ended September 30, 2012, $2,695,020, an increase of $516,846 or 19.2%. The increase
for the three months ended September 30, 2013 is primarily due to an increase in legal fees of approximately
$253,000. The significant increase in legal expenses is due primarily to our efforts to resolve outstanding non-routine
legal issues. We expect that these issues (e.g. SEC Civil Action and others) will be substantively resolved in the near
future, and therefore we expect to realize a decrease in legal expenses in future quarters. Also contributing to the
increase in G&A spending was an increase in personnel costs of approximately $168,000 of which $72,000 was
non-cash, stock-based compensation. Aside from the expectations of decreased legal expenses as our non-routine
matters are substantively resolved, we expect general and administrative expenses to remain at or near current
spending levels for the balance of the year.

Other Income (Expense)

For the Three Months
Ended September 30,

2013 2012 $ Change %
Change

Interest and other income $162,548 $3,585 $158,963 4434.1%
Interest expense (271,021) (278,493 ) 7,472 2.7%
Finance gain (loss) 343,002 (2,891,600) 3,234,602 111.9%
Adjustments to fair value of derivatives 146,609 (336,200 ) 482,809 -143.6%
Total non-operating income (expense) $381,138 $(3,502,708) $3,883,846
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Included in interest and other income for the three months ended September 30, 2013 is $148,000 of insurance
proceeds received as reimbursement of legal expenses related to certain ongoing litigation matters.

The finance gain (loss) line item of the consolidated statement of operations shifted from a loss in the three months
ended, September 30, 2012 to a gain for the same period in 2013. During the three months ended September 30, 2013,
we recorded a finance gain of $343,002 due to the change in estimates related to settlements compared to a loss of
$2,891,600 for the change in estimates during the three months ended September 30, 2012. The gain of $343,002 for
the three months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to the decrease in the ending share price from $0.0785
at June 30, 2013 to $0.0713 at September 30, 2013 based on an estimated number of shares to be issued at settlement
of 48,307,000. The loss of $2,891,600 for the three months ended September 30, 2012 was primarily due to the
increase in the ending share price from $0.06 at June 30, 2012 to $0.08 at September 30, 2012 based on an estimated
number of shares to be issued at settlement of 148,307,000.
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Adjustments to fair value of derivatives changed from a gain of $146,609 during the three months ended September
30, 2013 to a loss of $336,200 during the three months ended September 30, 2012. The gain of $146,609 for the three
months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to a decrease in our share price from $0.0785 at June 30, 2013 to
$0.0713 at September 30, 2013. During the three months ended September 30, 2012, the loss was primarily due to the
increase in our stock price from $0.062 at June 30, 2012 to $0.0763 at September 30, 2012.

Comparison of Nine Months Ended September 30, 2013 and 2012

Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2013 2012 $ Change %
Change

Revenue $185,517 $342,053 $(156,536 ) -45.8%
Cost of revenue 66,827 46,827 20,000 42.7%
Gross profit 118,690 295,226 (176,536 ) -59.8%
Research and development expenses 8,285,406 6,204,146 2,081,260 33.5%
General and administrative expenses 9,148,133 8,994,088 154,045 1.7%
Non-operating income (expense) (1,414,660 ) (3,277,176 ) 1,862,516 -56.8%
Net loss $(18,729,509) $(18,180,184) $(549,325 ) 3.0%

Revenue

Revenue relates to license fees and royalties collected that are being amortized over the period of the license granted,
and are therefore typically consistent between periods. Revenue was $185,517 for the nine months ended September
30, 2013, which was a decrease of $156,536 or 45.8% compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2012. The
decrease is due to license agreements that expired in 2013. Deferred revenue of $1,947,042 as September 30, 2013,
will be amortized and recorded to revenue over approximately 13 years.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development (“R&D”) expenses consist mainly of payroll and payroll related expenses for our scientific
staff, services attained in connection with our ongoing clinical trials and pre-clinical programs, our R&D and GMP
facilities, and research supplies and materials. R&D expenditures increased from $6,204,146 for the nine months
ended September 30, 2012 to $8,285,406 for the nine months ended September 30, 2013, for an increase of
$2,081,260 or 33.5%. This increase in R&D expenditures was primarily due to an increase in clinical trial expenses of
approximately $707,000, as we continue to screen, enroll and treat patients in our age-related macular degeneration
(“AMD”) trial and our Stargardt’s macular degeneration trials. We also realized an increase in spending of approximately
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$527,000, related to license fees, consulting costs, and collaborations in support of our various pre-clinical programs.
Also contributing to our increase in R&D spending was an increase of $435,000 for personnel costs, consistent with
our expansion of our R&D staff. We also realized an increase of $184,000 in our occupancy costs, due to the
additional lab and manufacturing space rented in our Marlborough facility.

Our R&D expenses are primarily associated with basic and pre-clinical research and our clinical development
programs, exclusively in the field of human stem cell therapies and regenerative medicine. Our focus is on
development of our technologies in cellular reprogramming, reduced complexity applications, and stem cell
differentiation. These expenses represent both pre-clinical and clinical development costs and costs associated with
support activities such as quality control and regulatory processes. The cost of our research and development
personnel is the most significant category of expense; however, we also incur expenses with third parties, including
license agreements, sponsored research programs and consulting expenses.

We do not segregate R&D costs by project because our research is focused exclusively on human stem cell therapies
as a unitary field of study. Although we have three principal areas of focus for our research, these areas are
intertwined and have not yet matured to the point where they are separate and distinct projects. The intellectual
property, scientists and other resources dedicated to these efforts are not separately allocated to individual projects,
since the research is conducted on an integrated basis.

We expect that R&D expenses will fluctuate from period to period, for the foreseeable future. Our spending is
impacted by the timing of enrollment and treatment of clinical trial patients along with interim results of our many
pre-clinical programs. The amount and timing of these fluctuations can be difficult to predict due to the uncertainty
inherent in the timing and extent of progress in our research programs, initiation of new clinical trials and rate of
progression of existing clinical trials. In addition, the results from our basic research and pre-clinical trials, as well as
the results of trials of similar therapeutics under development by others, will influence the number, size and duration
of current and future trials. As our research efforts mature, we will continue to review the direction of our research
based on an assessment of the value of possible commercial applications emerging from these efforts. Based on this
continuing review, we expect to establish discrete research programs and evaluate the cost and potential for cash
inflows from commercializing products, partnering with others in the biotechnology or pharmaceutical industry, or
licensing the technologies associated with these programs to third parties.
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We believe that it is not possible at this stage to provide a meaningful estimate of the total cost to complete our
ongoing projects and bring any proposed products to market. The use of human embryonic stem cells as a therapy is
an emerging area of medicine, and it is not known what clinical trials will be required by the FDA in order to gain
marketing approval. Costs to complete could vary substantially depending upon the projects selected for development,
the number of clinical trials required and the number of patients needed for each study. It is possible that the
completion of these studies could be delayed for a variety of reasons, including difficulties in enrolling patients,
delays in manufacturing, incomplete or inconsistent data from the pre-clinical or clinical trials, and difficulties
evaluating the trial results. Any delay in completion of a trial would increase the cost of that trial, which would harm
our results of operations. Due to these uncertainties, we cannot reasonably estimate the size, nature nor timing of the
costs to complete, or the amount or timing of the net cash inflows from our current activities. Until we obtain further
relevant pre-clinical and clinical data, we will not be able to estimate our future expenses related to these programs or
when, if ever, and to what extent we will receive cash inflows from resulting products.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was $9,148,133, as compared to
the nine months ended September 30, 2012, $8,994,088, an increase of $154,045 or 1.7%. The increase was primarily
due to an increase in legal expenses of approximately $442,000. The significant increase in legal expenses is due
primarily to our efforts to resolve outstanding non-routine legal issues. We expect that these issues (e.g. SEC Civil
Action and other) will be substantively resolved in the near future, and therefore we expect to realize a decrease in
legal expenses in future quarters. This increase in legal expenses was partially offset by reduced spending on investor
relations of $206,000, and other administrative items. Aside from the expectations of decreased legal expenses as our
non-routine matters are substantively resolved, we expect general and administrative expenses to remain at or near
current spending levels for the balance of the year.

Other Income (Expense)

For the Nine Months
Ended September 30,

2013 2012 $ Change %
Change

Interest and other income $165,340 $13,170 $152,170 1155.4%
Interest expense (1,165,438) (826,109 ) (339,329 ) -41.1%
Finance gain (loss) (637,257 ) 779,481 (1,416,738) 181.8%
Fines (587,147 ) (3,500,000) 2,912,853 83.2%
Gain on extinguishment of debt 438,587 – 438,587 100.0%
Adjustments to fair value of derivatives 371,255 256,282 114,973 44.9%
Total non-operating income (expense) $(1,414,660) $(3,277,176) $1,862,516
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Included in interest and other income for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 is $148,000 of insurance
proceeds received as reimbursement of legal expenses related to certain ongoing litigation matters.

Interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 compared to the nine months ended September 30,
2012 increased by $339,329 or 41.1%. The increase is due to the interest expense on the senior secured convertible
debentures that we issued in December 2012 pursuant to the settlement agreement with the CAMOFI Parties. The
expense related to the senior secured convertible debentures that we recorded during the nine months ended
September 30, 2013 was $304,000 of interest expense, based on the stated interest rate, plus $374,497 of amortized
discount. The increase in interest expense was offset by a decrease in interest expense of approximately $274,000 of
interest related to the Series A preferred stock and approximately $64,000 of interest related to the JMJ convertible
promissory notes.

The finance gain (loss) line item of the consolidated statement of operations shifted from a gain in the nine months
ended, September 30, 2012 to a loss for the same period in 2013. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013,
we recorded a finance loss of $637,257 due to the change in estimates related to settlements compared to a gain of
$779,481 for the change in estimates during the three months ended September 30, 2012. The loss of $637,257 for the
nine months ended September 30, 2013 was primarily due to the increase in the ending share price from $0.0557 at
December 31, 2012 to $0.0713 at September 30, 2013 based on an estimated number of shares to be issued at
settlement of 48,307,000 in September 2013 compared to 128,664,334 as of December 31, 2012. The gain of
$779,481 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012 was primarily due to the decrease in the ending share price
from $0.13 at December 31, 2011 to $0.08 at September 30, 2012 based on an estimated number of shares to be issued
at settlement of 148,307,181 in September 2012 compared to 523,509,285 as of December 31, 2011.
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We recorded a gain on extinguishment of debt of $438,587 during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 which
was related to the forgiveness of the JMJ convertible note.

Adjustments to fair value of derivatives changed from a gain of $256,282 during the nine months ended September
30, 2012, to a gain of $371,255 during the nine months ended September 30, 2013. During the nine months ended
September 30, 2012, the gain was primarily due to the decrease in the estimated life due to the passage of time. The
gain for the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was due to the change in the estimated volatility factors ranging
from 50% to 160% depending on the estimated life of the derivative at September 30, 2013 compared to a volatility of
155% which was used for all derivatives at December 31, 2012, offset by an increase in our exercise price from
$0.0557 at December 31, 2012 to $.0713 at September 30, 2013. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash Flows

The following table sets forth a summary of our cash flows for the periods indicated below:

Nine Months
Ended  September 30,
2013 2012

Net cash used in operating activities $(17,410,745) $(11,555,224)
Net cash used in investing activities (622,986 ) (10,269 )
Net cash provided by financing activities 16,244,532 6,716,500
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,789,199 ) (4,848,993 )
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $5,452,653 $8,254,014

Operating Activities

Our net cash used in operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $17,410,745
and $11,555,224, respectively. Cash used in operating activities increased during the current period primarily due to
an increase in operating expenditures and therefore an increase in net loss. Net loss for the nine months ended,
September 30, 2013 was $18,729,509 as compared to $18,180,184 for the nine months ended September 30, 2012.
During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, there was approximately $2,536,000 of cash used by changes in
operating assets and liabilities. During the nine months ended September 30, 2012 there was approximately
$2,887,000 provided by changes in operating assets and liabilities.
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Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was $622,986 and
$10,269 respectively. Our cash used in investing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 was
driven primarily by our facility expansion and build-out. As part of this facility build-out we incurred approximately
$317,000 in leasehold improvements and approximately $237,000 in purchases of capital equipment. We expect our
cash used in investing activities to increase modestly for the balance of the year as we complete build-out related
activities during the fourth quarter of 2013.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

On September 19, 2012, we entered into a purchase agreement (the “Purchase Agreement”) with Lincoln Park Capital
Fund, LLC (“Lincoln Park”). Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, we have the right to sell to Lincoln Park up to
$35,000,000 in shares of our common stock. Upon signing the Purchase Agreement, Lincoln Park purchased
10,000,000 shares of our common stock for $800,000 as the initial purchase. In addition, we issued 8,750,000 shares
of common stock to Lincoln Park as a commitment fee.

Upon the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, including the registration statement for
the resale of the shares issued thereunder being declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission (which
effectiveness occurred on November 6, 2012), we have the right over a 36-month period to sell up to an additional
$34.2 million worth of shares of our common stock to Lincoln Park, upon the terms set forth in the Purchase
Agreement. Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the purchase price of such common stock will be based on the
prevailing market price of our common stock immediately preceding the time of sales, with us having the ability to
control the timing and amount of any future sales, if any, of common stock to Lincoln Park. There are no upper limits
to the price Lincoln Park may pay to purchase our common stock. Lincoln Park shall not have the right or the
obligation to purchase any shares of common stock on any business day that the closing price of our common stock is
below a floor price as provided in the Purchase Agreement. The purchase price means, with respect to any regular
purchase, the lower of: (i) the lowest sale price on the applicable purchase date and (ii) the arithmetic average of the
three (3) lowest closing sale prices for the common stock during the ten (10) consecutive business days ending on the
business day immediately preceding such purchase date (in each case, to be appropriately adjusted for any
reorganization, recapitalization, non-cash dividend, stock split or other similar transaction that occurs on or after the
date of this Purchase Agreement. However, the purchase price cannot be below $0.03.
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Cash flows provided by financing activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2013 and 2012 was
$16,244,532 and $6,716,500, respectively. During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we received
$16,844,532 from the issuance of 237,607,759 shares to Lincoln Park as part of the $35,000,000 Purchase Agreement.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2013, we satisfied our quarterly obligation to CAMOFI and CAMZHN
with one cash payment of $600,000, and two payments of $600,000 in conversions to common shares at the holders
election on the senior secured convertible debentures.

We plan to fund our operations for the foreseeable future from the following sources:

·As of September 30, 2013, we have approximately $5,452,653 in cash.

·As of September 30, 2013, $15,214,366 is available to us through the Lincoln Park financing arrangement.

On a long term basis, we have no expectation of generating meaningful revenues from our product candidates for a
substantial period of time and must rely on raising funds in capital transactions to finance our research and
development programs. Our future cash requirements will depend on many factors, including the pace and scope of
our research and development programs, the costs involved in filing, prosecuting and enforcing patents, and other
costs associated with commercializing our potential products.

We believe that our current cash balance, and the approximately $15,000,000 available to us under the Lincoln Park
financing arrangement, will be sufficient to fund our operations into the second half of 2014. This belief is based on
the assumption that our stock price does not realize any significant or prolonged decreases. Our ability to fund our
operations through the Lincoln Park arrangement is highly dependent on our stock price. A significant decline in our
share price could force us to curtail our operations in part, or entirely. We are continually in discussions with potential
investors and collaborators to explore alternative sources of dilutive and non-dilutive funding, so that we may either
extend our current runway beyond the second half of 2014 or accelerate the rate of investment in our many clinical
and pre-clinical programs.

We cannot assure you that public or private financing or grants will be available on acceptable terms, if at all. Several
factors will affect our ability to raise additional funding, including, but not limited to, the volatility of our common
stock. If we are unable to raise additional funds, we will be forced to either scale back our business efforts or curtail
our business activities entirely.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements, transactions, obligations or other relationships with
unconsolidated entities that would be expected to have a material current or future effect upon our financial condition
or results of operations.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our exposure to market risk is limited primarily to interest income sensitivity, which is affected by changes in the
general level of U.S. interest rates, particularly because a significant portion of our investments are in short-term debt
securities issued by the U.S. government and institutional money market funds. The primary objective of our
investment activities is to preserve principal. Due to the nature of our marketable securities, we believe that we are not
exposed to any material market risk.  We do not have any derivative financial instruments or foreign currency
instruments. If interest rates had varied by 10% in the quarter ended September 30, 2013, it would not have had a
material effect on our results of operations or cash flows for that period.

37

Edgar Filing: ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Form 10-Q

75



ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer after evaluating the effectiveness of our "disclosure
controls and procedures" (as defined in the Exchange Act Rule 13a- 15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e)), with the participation of
our management have each concluded that as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective and were designed to ensure that information we are required to
disclose in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is accumulated
and communicated to management including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer as
appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms. It should be
noted that any system of controls is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurances that the system will
achieve its stated goals under all reasonably foreseeable circumstances. Our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer have each concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered
by this report are effective at a level that provides such reasonable assurances.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting (as such term is defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the quarter ended September 30, 2013 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, we are party to litigation matters. We included a discussion of certain legal
proceedings in Part I, Item 3, of our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 7, 2013 (the “2012 Form 10-K”) and in Part II, Item 1 of the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended March 31, 2013 (the “1st Quarter 2013 10-Q”). During the quarter ended September 30, 2013, there
were no material developments to the legal proceedings disclosed in the 2012 Form 10-K or the 1st Quarter 2013
10-Q.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking information based on our current expectations.
Because our actual results may differ materially from any forward-looking statements that we make or that are made
on our behalf, this section includes a discussion of important factors that could affect our actual future results,
including, but not limited to, our capital resources, our ability to successfully develop and commercialize therapeutic
products, the progress and timing of our clinical programs, the safety and efficacy of our product candidates, risks
associated with regulatory filings, risks associated with determinations made by regulatory agencies, the potential
clinical benefits and market potential of our product candidates, future development efforts, patent protection, effects
of healthcare reform, reliance on third parties, and other risks set forth below. You should carefully consider the risks
described below, including information in the section of this document entitled “Forward Looking Statements.” An
investment in the Company’s common stock involves a high degree of risk. If any of the following risks actually occur,
our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected, the value of our
common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. The risks and uncertainties described
below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we
currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations.

Those risk factors below denoted with a “*” are newly added or have been materially updated from our Annual
Report on 10-K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2013.
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Risks Relating to the Company’s Early Stage of Development and Capital Resources

*Our primary source of liquidity is our financing arrangement with Lincoln Park Capital Fund LLC, and changes
in our share price directly affect our ability to fund our operations.

We currently rely on our share purchase agreement with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC (“Lincoln Park”). Pursuant to
this agreement, the purchase price of such common stock sold to Lincoln Park is based on the prevailing market price
of our common stock immediately preceding the time of sales; we control the timing and amount of any future sales, if
any, of common stock. There are no upper limits to the price Lincoln Park may pay to purchase our common stock.
The purchase price in most cases is directly derived from the prevailing market price of our common stock on
OTCBB. Though the purchase price cannot be less than $0.03, this arrangement means that our prevailing share price
directly affects the number of shares we need to issue to Lincoln Park at any given time to fund short-term operations.
The number of shares issuable under our Certificate of Incorporation and the number of shares registered on the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 we filed to register the shares sold to Lincoln Park are both limited, and a share
price that falls and stays too low would make it difficult or impossible to fund our operations through sales of shares
to Lincoln Park due to these limitations.

Our business is at an early stage of development and we may not develop therapeutic products that can be
commercialized.

We do not yet have any product candidates in late-stage clinical trials or in the marketplace. Our potential therapeutic
products will require extensive preclinical and clinical testing prior to regulatory approval in the United States and
other countries. We may not be able to obtain regulatory approvals in some cases (see REGULATORY RISKS), be
permitted to enter or continue clinical trials for some of our products, or commercialize any products. Our therapeutic
and product candidates may prove to have undesirable and unintended side effects or other characteristics adversely
affecting their safety, efficacy or cost-effectiveness that could prevent or limit their therapeutic use, commercialization
or acceptance in the medical community. Any product using any of our technology may fail to provide the intended
therapeutic benefits, or even achieve therapeutic benefits equal to or better than the standard of treatment at the time of
testing or production. In addition, we will need to determine whether any of our potential products can be
manufactured in commercial quantities or at an acceptable cost, with or without third-party support. Our efforts may
not result in a product that can be or will be marketed successfully. Physicians may not prescribe our products, and
patients or third party payors may not accept our products. For these reasons we may not be able to generate revenues
from commercial production.

*We have never generated any revenue from product sales and may never be profitable.
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We have limited clinical testing, regulatory, manufacturing, marketing, distribution and sales experience capabilities
which may limit our ability to generate revenues. Due to the relatively early stage of our therapeutic products,
including regenerative medical therapies and stem cell therapy-based programs, we have not yet invested significantly
in regulatory, manufacturing, marketing, distribution or product sales resources. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to invest or develop any of these resources successfully or as expediently as necessary, alone or with strategic
partners. We do not anticipate generating revenues from product sales for the foreseeable future, if ever. Our ability to
generate future revenues from product sales depends heavily on our success in:

· completing research and preclinical and clinical development of our therapeutic candidates;

·seeking and obtaining regulatory and marketing approvals for therapeutic candidates for which we complete clinicalstudies;

·developing a sustainable, scalable, reproducible, and transferable manufacturing process for our therapeuticcandidates;

·
establishing and maintaining supply and manufacturing relationships with third parties that can provide adequate (in
amount and quality) products and services to support clinical development and the market demand for our therapeutic
candidates, if approved;

·
launching and commercializing therapeutic candidates for which we obtain regulatory and marketing approval, either
by collaborating with a partner or, if launched independently, by establishing a sales force, marketing and distribution
infrastructure;

· obtaining market acceptance of our therapeutic candidates as a viable treatment option;

· addressing any competing technological and market developments;

· implementing additional internal systems and infrastructure, as needed;
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· identifying and validating new therapeutic candidates;

· negotiating favorable terms in any collaboration, licensing or other arrangements into which we may enter;

·maintaining, protecting and expanding our portfolio of intellectual property rights, including patents, trade secretsand know-how; and

· attracting, hiring and retaining qualified personnel.

Even if one or more of the therapeutic candidates that we develop is approved for commercial sale, we anticipate
incurring significant costs associated with commercializing any approved product candidate. Our expenses could
increase beyond expectations if we are required by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or the FDA, or other
regulatory agencies, domestic or foreign, to perform clinical and other studies in addition to those that we currently
anticipate. Even if we are able to generate revenues from the sale of any approved products, we may not become
profitable and may need to obtain additional funding to continue operations. The inability to do so will inhibit or harm
our ability to generate revenues or operate profitably.

We have a history of operating losses and we may not achieve future revenues or operating profits.

We have generated modest revenue to date from our operations. Historically we have had net operating losses each
year since our inception. As of September 30, 2013, we have an accumulated deficit of $301,022,907 and a
stockholders’ deficit of $12,208,008. We incurred net losses of $28,526,261, $72,795,119 and $54,373,332 for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively and a net loss of $18,729,509 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2013. We have limited current potential sources of income from licensing fees and the Company does
not generate significant revenue outside of licensing non-core technologies. Additionally, even if we are able to
commercialize our technologies or any products or services related to our technologies it is not certain that they will
result in revenue or profitability.

*We have a limited operating history on which investors may evaluate our operations and prospects for profitable
operations.

If we continue to suffer losses as we have in the past, investors may not receive any return on their investment and
may perhaps lose their entire investment. Our prospects must be considered speculative in light of the risks, expenses
and difficulties frequently encountered by companies in their early stages of development, particularly in light of the
uncertainties relating to the new, competitive and rapidly evolving markets in which we anticipate we will operate. A
substantial risk is involved in investing in us because, as an early stage company, we have fewer resources than an
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established company, our management may be more likely to make mistakes at such an early stage, and we may be
more vulnerable operationally and financially to any mistakes that may be made, as well as to external factors beyond
our control. We also have no experience bringing therapeutics candidates through regulatory approval to
commercialization, and we operate with little budgetary margin for error. To attempt to address these risks, we must,
among other things, further develop our technologies, products and services, successfully implement our research,
development, marketing and commercialization strategies, respond to competitive developments and attract, retain and
motivate qualified personnel. Any failure to achieve any of the forgoing would result in an inability to achieve
profitability.

* We will need to expand our organization and we may experience difficulties in managing this growth, which
could disrupt our operations.

As of September 30, 2013, we had 37 full-time employees. As we mature and undertake the activities required to
further develop and commercialize our therapeutic candidates, we may expand our full-time employee base and hire
more consultants and contractors. Our management may need to divert a disproportionate amount of its attention away
from our day-to-day activities and devote a substantial amount of time to managing these growth activities. We may
not be able to effectively manage the expansion of our operations, which may result in weaknesses in our
infrastructure, operational mistakes, loss of business opportunities, loss of employees and reduced productivity among
remaining employees. Our expected growth could require significant capital expenditures and may divert financial
resources from other projects, such as the development of additional product candidates. If our management is unable
to effectively manage our growth, our expenses may increase more than expected, our ability to generate and/or grow
revenues could be reduced, and we may not be able to implement our business strategy. Our future financial
performance and our ability to commercialize product candidates and compete effectively will depend, in part, on our
ability to effectively manage any future growth.
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Risks Relating to Technology

*We are dependent on new and unproven technologies.

Our risks as an early stage company are compounded by our heavy dependence on emerging and sometimes unproven
technologies. If these technologies do not produce satisfactory results, our business may be harmed. We have not
proven ability to navigate all regulatory requirements for therapeutic candidates of any type. Given the novel nature of
our potential product candidates, the FDA or other regulatory agency may require additional clinical data than that
required of other conventional therapies. Additionally some of our technologies and significant potential revenue
sources involve ethically sensitive and controversial issues which could become the subject of legislation or
regulations that could materially restrict our operations and, therefore, harm our financial condition, operating results
and prospects for bringing our investors a return on their investment.

We may not be able to commercially develop our technologies and proposed product lines, which, in turn, would
significantly harm our ability to earn revenues and result in a loss of investment.

Our ability to commercially develop our technologies will be dictated in large part by forces outside our control which
cannot be predicted, including, but not limited to, general economic conditions, the success of our research and
pre-clinical and field testing, the availability of collaborative partners to finance our work in pursuing applications of
cell therapy technologies and technological or other developments in the biomedical field which, due to efficiencies,
technological breakthroughs or greater acceptance in the biomedical industry, may render one or more areas of
commercialization more attractive, obsolete or competitively unattractive. It is possible that one or more areas of
commercialization will not be pursued at all if a collaborative partner or entity willing to fund research and
development cannot be located or if we cannot agree to acceptable terms governing a potential collaboration. Our
decisions regarding the ultimate products and/or services we pursue could have a significant adverse effect on our
ability to earn revenue if we misinterpret trends, underestimate development costs and/or pursue wrong products or
services. Any of these factors either alone or in concert could materially harm our ability to earn revenues or could
result in a loss of any investment in us.

*We face intense competition and rapid technological change and the possibility that our competitors may develop
therapies that are more advanced or effective than ours, which may adversely affect our financial condition and
our ability to successfully commercialize our product candidates.

We are engaged in activities in the biotechnology field, which is characterized by extensive research efforts and rapid
technological progress. If we fail to anticipate or respond adequately to technological developments, our ability to
operate profitably could suffer. Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and other
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resources, such as larger research and development staff and experienced marketing and manufacturing organizations.
Competition may increase further as a result of advances in the commercial applicability of technologies and greater
availability of capital for investment in these industries. Our competitors may succeed in developing, acquiring or
licensing on an exclusive basis, products that are more effective or less costly than any product candidate that we may
develop, or achieve earlier patent protection, regulatory approval, product commercialization and market penetration
than us. Additionally, technologies developed by our competitors may render our potential product candidates
uneconomical or obsolete, and we may not be successful in marketing our product candidates against competitors. We
cannot assure you that research and discoveries by other biotechnology, agricultural, pharmaceutical or other
companies will not render our technologies or potential products or services uneconomical or result in products
superior to those we develop or that any technologies, products or services we develop will be preferred to any
existing or newly-developed technologies, products or services.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property

Certain aspects of our business are highly dependent upon maintaining licenses with respect to key technology; if
we are unable to obtain or protect intellectual property rights related to our product candidates, we may not be able
to compete effectively in our markets.

Several of the patents we utilize are licensed to us by third parties. These licenses are subject to termination under
certain circumstances (including, for example, our failure to make minimum royalty payments or to timely achieve
spending, development and commercialization benchmarks). The loss of any of such licenses, or the conversion of
such licenses to non-exclusive licenses, could harm our operations and/or enhance the prospects of our competitors.
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Certain of these licenses also contain restrictions, such as limitations on our ability to grant sublicenses that could
materially interfere with our ability to generate revenue through the licensing or sale to third parties of important and
valuable technologies that we have, for strategic reasons, elected not to pursue directly. The possibility exists that in
the future we will require further licenses to complete and/or commercialize our proposed products. We cannot assure
you that we will be able to acquire any such licenses on a commercially viable basis.

Certain parts of our technology are not protectable by patent.

Certain parts of our know-how and technology are not patentable. To protect our proprietary position in such
know-how and technology, we require all employees, consultants, advisors and collaborators to enter into
confidentiality and invention ownership agreements with us. We cannot assure you, however, that these agreements
will provide meaningful protection for our trade secrets, know-how or other proprietary information in the event of
any unauthorized use or disclosure. Further, in the absence of patent protection, competitors who independently
develop substantially equivalent technology may harm our business.

*Patent litigation presents an ongoing threat to our business with respect to both outcomes and costs.

We have previously been involved in patent interference litigation, and it is possible that further litigation over patent
matters with one or more competitors could arise. We could incur substantial litigation or interference costs in
defending ourselves against suits brought against us or in suits in which we may assert our patents against others. If
the outcome of any such litigation is unfavorable, our business could be materially adversely affected. To determine
the priority of inventions, we may also have to participate in interference proceedings declared by the United States
Patent and Trademark Office, which could result in substantial cost to us. Without additional capital, we may not have
the resources to adequately defend or pursue this litigation. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of
discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that some of our confidential
information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of litigation. There could also be public
announcements of the results of hearings, motions or other interim proceedings or developments. If securities analysts
or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could have a material adverse effect on the price of our common
stock.

We may not be able to protect our proprietary technology, which could harm our ability to operate profitably.

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries place considerable importance on obtaining patent and trade secret
protection for new technologies, products and processes. Our success will depend, to a substantial degree, on our
ability to obtain and enforce patent protection for our products, preserve any trade secrets and operate without
infringing the proprietary rights of others. We cannot assure you that:
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·we will succeed in obtaining any patents in a timely manner or at all, or that the breadth or degree of protection ofany such patents will protect our interests;

· the use of our technology will not infringe on the proprietary rights of others;

·patent applications relating to our potential products or technologies will result in the issuance of any patents or that,if issued, such patents will afford adequate protection to us or not be challenged invalidated or infringed;

· patents will not issue to other parties, which may be infringed by our potential products or technologies; and

·we will continue to have the financial resources necessary to prosecute our existing patent applications, paymaintenance fees on patents and patent applications, or file patent applications on new inventions.

We are aware of certain patents that have been granted to others and certain patent applications that have been filed by
others with respect to iPS cells and embryonic stem cells, and other stem cell technologies. The fields in which we
operate have been characterized by significant efforts by competitors to establish dominant or blocking patent rights to
gain a competitive advantage, and by considerable differences of opinion as to the value and legal legitimacy of
competitors’ purported patent rights and the technologies they actually utilize in their businesses.
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*Patents obtained by other persons may result in infringement claims against us that are costly to defend and
which may limit our ability to use the disputed technologies and prevent us from pursuing research and
development or commercialization of potential products.

A number of other pharmaceutical, biotechnology and other companies, universities and research institutions have
filed patent applications or have been issued patents relating to cell therapies, stem cells, and other technologies
potentially relevant to or required by our expected products. We cannot predict which, if any, of such applications will
issue as patents or the claims that might be allowed. We are aware that a number of companies have filed applications
relating to the generation, formulation and uses of various stem cells. We are also aware of a number of patent
applications and patents claiming use of stem cells and other modified cells to treat disease, disorder or injury.

If third party patents or patent applications contain claims infringed by either our licensed technology or other
technology required to make and use our potential products and such claims are ultimately determined to be valid,
there can be no assurance that we would be able to obtain licenses to these patents at a reasonable cost, if at all, or be
able to develop or obtain alternative technology. If we are unable to obtain such licenses at a reasonable cost, we may
not be able to develop some products commercially. We may be required to defend ourselves in court against
allegations of infringement of third party patents. Patent litigation is very expensive and could consume substantial
resources and create significant uncertainties. An adverse outcome in such a suit could subject us to significant
liabilities to third parties, require disputed rights to be licensed from third parties, or require us to cease using such
technology.

If we or one of our licensing partners initiated legal proceedings against a third party to enforce a patent covering one
of our therapeutic candidates, the defendant could counterclaim that the patent covering our therapeutic candidate is
invalid and/or unenforceable. In patent litigation in the United States, defendant counterclaims alleging invalidity
and/or unenforceability are commonplace. Grounds for a validity challenge could be an alleged failure to meet any of
several statutory requirements, including lack of novelty, obviousness or non-enablement. Grounds for an
unenforceability assertion could be an allegation that someone connected with prosecution of the patent withheld
relevant information from the United states Patent and Trademark office, or USPTO, or made a misleading statement,
during prosecution. Third parties may also raise similar claims before administrative bodies in the United States or
abroad, even outside the context of litigation. Such mechanisms include re-examination, post grant review, and
equivalent proceedings in foreign jurisdictions (e.g., opposition proceedings). Such proceedings could result in
revocation or amendment to our patents in such a way that they no longer cover our therapeutic candidates. The
outcome following legal assertions of invalidity and unenforceability is unpredictable. With respect to the validity
question, for example, we cannot be certain that there is no invalidating prior art, of which we and the patent examiner
were unaware during prosecution. If a defendant were to prevail on a legal assertion of invalidity and/or
unenforceability, we would lose at least part, and perhaps all, of the patent protection on our therapeutic candidates.
Such a loss of patent protection would have a material adverse impact on our business.

*Changes in U.S. patent law could diminish the value of patents in general, thereby impairing our ability to protect
our products.
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As is the case with other biotechnology companies, our success is heavily dependent on intellectual property,
particularly patents. Obtaining and enforcing patents in the biotechnology industry involve both technological and
legal complexity, and is therefore obtaining and enforcing biotechnology patents is costly, time-consuming and
inherently uncertain. In addition, the United States has recently enacted and is currently implementing wide-ranging
patent reform legislation. Recent U.S. Supreme Court rulings have narrowed the scope of patent protection available
in certain circumstances and weakened the rights of patent owners in certain situations. In addition to increasing
uncertainty with regard to our ability to obtain patents in the future, this combination of events has created uncertainty
with respect to the value of patents, once obtained. Depending on decisions by the U.S. Congress, the federal courts,
and the USPTO, the laws and regulations governing patents could change in unpredictable ways that would weaken
our ability to obtain new patents or to enforce our existing patents and patents that we might obtain in the future.

We may not be able to remain in compliance with some of our license agreements.

Maintaining certain of our license agreements (for in-licensed technology) requires that we pay annual maintenance
fees and/or meet particular development or spending milestones. If we are unable to be in compliance with our license
agreements, the license may be terminated and our business may be harmed.

We may not be able to adequately defend against piracy of intellectual property in foreign jurisdictions.

Considerable research in the areas of stem cells, cell therapeutics and regenerative medicine is being performed in
countries outside of the United States, and a number of potential competitors are located in these countries. The laws
protecting intellectual property in some of those countries may not provide adequate protection to prevent our
competitors from misappropriating our intellectual property. Several of these potential competitors may be further
along in the process of product development and also operate large, company-funded research and development
programs. As a result, our competitors may develop more competitive or affordable products, or achieve earlier patent
protection or product commercialization than we are able to achieve. Competitive products may render any products
or product candidates that we develop obsolete.
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Regulatory Risks

*We cannot market our product candidates until we receive regulatory approval; even if we complete the necessary
preclinical and clinical studies, we cannot predict when or if we will obtain regulatory approval to commercialize a
product candidate or the approval may be for a more narrow indication than we expect.

We must comply with extensive government regulations in order to obtain and maintain marketing approval for our
products in the United States and abroad. The process of obtaining regulatory approval is lengthy, expensive and
uncertain. In the United States, the FDA imposes substantial requirements on the introduction of biological products
and many medical devices through lengthy and detailed laboratory and clinical testing procedures, sampling activities
and other costly and time-consuming procedures. Satisfaction of these requirements typically takes several years and
the time required to do so may vary substantially based upon the type and complexity of the biological product or
medical device.

If we fail to obtain regulatory approval of any of our product candidates for at least one indication, we will not be
permitted to market our product candidates and may be forced to cease our operations. Even if our product candidates
demonstrate safety and efficacy in clinical studies, the regulatory agencies may not complete their review processes in
a timely manner, or we may not be able to obtain regulatory approval. Additional delays may result if an FDA
Advisory Committee or other regulatory authority recommends non-approval or restrictions on approval. In addition,
we may experience delays or rejections based upon additional government regulation from future legislation or
administrative action, or changes in regulatory agency policy during the period of product development, clinical
studies and the review process. Regulatory agencies also may approve a treatment candidate for fewer or more limited
indications than requested or may grant approval subject to the performance of post-marketing studies. In addition,
regulatory agencies may not approve the labeling claims that are necessary or desirable for the successful
commercialization of our treatment candidates.

In addition, product candidates that we believe should be classified as medical devices for purposes of the FDA
regulatory pathway may be determined by the FDA to be biologic products subject to the satisfaction of significantly
more stringent requirements for FDA approval. Any difficulties that we encounter in obtaining regulatory approval
may have a substantial adverse impact on our business and cause our stock price to significantly decline.

*Even if we obtain regulatory approval for a product candidate, our products will remain subject to regulatory
scrutiny.

Even if we obtain regulatory approval in a jurisdiction, the regulatory authority may still impose significant
restrictions on the indicated uses or marketing of our product candidates, or impose ongoing requirements for
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potentially costly post-approval studies or post-market surveillance. Conditions of approval, such as limiting the
category of patients who can use the product, may significantly impact our ability to commercialize the product and
may make it difficult or impossible for us to market a product profitably. Changes we may desire to make to an
approved product, such as cell culturing changes or revised labeling, may require further regulatory review and
approval, which could prevent us from updating or otherwise changing an approved product. In addition, product
manufacturers and their facilities are subject to payment of user fees and continual review and periodic inspections by
the FDA and other regulatory authorities for compliance with good manufacturing practices, or GMP, and adherence
to commitments made to the FDA in the approval process. If we or a regulatory agency discovers previously unknown
problems with a product such as adverse events of unanticipated severity or frequency, or problems with the facility
where the product is manufactured, a regulatory agency may impose restrictions relative to that product or the
manufacturing facility, including requiring recall or withdrawal of the product from the market or suspension of
manufacturing.

Any government investigation of alleged violations of law could require us to expend significant time and resources in
response and could generate negative publicity. In addition, if our product candidates are approved by the FDA or
other regulatory authorities for the treatment of any indications, regulatory labeling may specify that our product
candidates be used in conjunction with other therapies. The occurrence of any event or penalty described above may
inhibit our ability to commercialize our product candidates and generate revenues.
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Once obtained, regulatory approvals may be withdrawn and can be expensive to maintain.

Regulatory approval may be withdrawn for a number of reasons, including the later discovery of previously unknown
problems with the product. Regulatory approval may also require costly post-marketing follow-up studies, and failure
of our product candidates to demonstrate sufficient efficacy and safety in these studies may result in either withdrawal
of marketing approval or severe limitations on permitted product usage. In addition, numerous additional regulatory
requirements relating to, among other processes, the labeling, packaging, adverse event reporting, storage, advertising,
promotion and record-keeping will also apply. Furthermore, regulatory agencies subject a marketed product, its
manufacturer and the manufacturer’s facilities to continual review and periodic inspections. Compliance with these
regulatory requirements are time-consuming and require the expenditure of substantial resources.

If any of our product candidates is approved, we will be required to report certain adverse events involving our
products to the FDA, to provide updated safety and efficacy information and to comply with requirements concerning
the advertisement and promotional labeling of our products. As a result, even if we obtain necessary regulatory
approvals to market our product candidates for any indication, any adverse results, circumstances or events that are
subsequently discovered, could require that we cease marketing the product for that indication or expend money, time
and effort to ensure full compliance, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

If our products do not comply with applicable laws and regulations our business will be harmed.

Any failure by us, or by any third parties that may manufacture or market our products, to comply with the law,
including statutes and regulations administered by the FDA or other U.S. or foreign regulatory authorities, could result
in, among other things, warning letters, fines and other civil penalties, suspension of regulatory approvals and the
resulting requirement that we suspend sales of our products, refusal to approve pending applications or supplements to
approved applications, export or import restrictions, interruption of production, operating restrictions, closure of the
facilities used by us or third parties to manufacture our product candidates, injunctions or criminal prosecution. Any of
the foregoing actions could have a material adverse effect on our business.

* The commercial success of any current or future product candidate will depend upon the degree of market
acceptance by physicians, patients, third-party payors and others in the medical community, and our products may
not be accepted in the marketplace.

If we are successful in obtaining regulatory approval for any of our product candidates, the degree of market
acceptance of those products will depend on many factors, including:
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·
Our ability to provide acceptable evidence and the perception of patients and the healthcare community, including
third party payors, of the positive characteristics of our product candidates relative to existing treatment methods,
including their safety, efficacy, cost effectiveness and/or other potential advantages;

· The incidence and severity of any adverse side effects of our product candidates;

· The availability of alternative treatments;

·The labeling requirements imposed by the FDA and foreign regulatory agencies, including the scope of approvedindications and any safety warnings;

· Our ability to obtain sufficient third party insurance coverage or reimbursement for our product candidates;

· The inclusion of our products on insurance company coverage policies;

· The willingness and ability of patients and the healthcare community to adopt new technologies;

·Public opinion and acceptance of stem cell therapy in general, including media coverage and activism by religious,social or political groups;

· The procedure time associated with the use of our product candidates;

·Our ability to manufacture or obtain from third party manufacturers sufficient quantities of our product candidateswith acceptable quality and at an acceptable cost to meet demand; and

· Marketing and distribution support for our products.
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We cannot predict or guarantee that physicians, patients, healthcare insurers, third party payors or health maintenance
organizations, or the healthcare community in general, will accept or utilize any of our product candidates. Failure to
achieve market acceptance would limit our ability to generate revenue and would have a material adverse effect on our
business. In addition, if any of our product candidates achieve market acceptance, we may not be able to maintain that
market acceptance over time if competing products or technologies are introduced that are received more favorably or
are more cost-effective.

*Restrictions on the use of human embryonic stem cells, the ethical, legal and social implications of that research,
and negative public opinion about stem cell therapy may damage public perception of our therapeutic candidates
and could prevent us from developing or gaining acceptance for commercially viable products in these areas.

Some of our most important programs involve the use of stem cells that are derived from human embryos. The use of
human embryonic stem cells gives rise to ethical, legal and social issues regarding the appropriate derivation of these
cells. In the event that our research related to human embryonic stem cells becomes the subject of adverse
commentary or publicity, our business could be harmed or otherwise substantially impaired, and the market price for
our common stock could be significantly harmed. Some political and religious groups have voiced opposition to our
technology and practices. We use stem cells derived from human embryos that have been created for in vitro
fertilization procedures but are no longer desired or suitable for that use and are donated with appropriate informed
consent for research use. Many research institutions, including some of our scientific collaborators, have adopted
policies regarding the ethical use of human embryonic tissue. These policies may have the effect of limiting the scope
of research conducted using human embryonic stem cells, thereby impairing our ability to conduct research in this
field.

Governmental regulations and laws could change.

There can be no assurance that our operations will not be restricted by any future legislative or administrative efforts
by politicians or groups opposed to the development of human embryonic stem cell technology or nuclear transfer
technology. Additionally, the scope of the Dickey–Wicker Amendment, a 16-year-old ban on U.S. federal funding for
activity related to the harm or destruction of an embryo, was recently under review by the federal courts and while it
was determined not to preclude funding of human embryonic stem cell research by the federal government, there can
be no assurance that it will not be challenged again or the language modified by Congress so as to restrict government
funding of human embryonic stem cell research. Judicial review of this or other U.S. federal or state laws could result
in a more restrictive interpretation of those laws than is previously the case, and may limit or require us to terminate
certain of our research and therapeutic programs.

Because we or our collaborators must obtain regulatory approval to market our products in the United States and
other countries, we cannot predict whether or when we will be permitted to commercialize our products.
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Federal, state and local governments in the United States and governments in other countries have significant
regulations in place that govern many of our activities. We are or may become subject to various federal, state and
local laws, regulations and recommendations relating to safe working conditions, laboratory and manufacturing
practices, the experimental use of animals and the use and disposal of hazardous or potentially hazardous substances
used in connection with our research and development work. The preclinical testing and clinical trials of the products
that we or our collaborators develop are subject to extensive government regulation that may prevent us from creating
commercially viable products from our discoveries. In addition, the sale by us or our collaborators of any
commercially viable product will be subject to government regulation from several standpoints, including
manufacturing, advertising and promoting, selling and marketing, labeling and distributing.

If, and to the extent that, we are unable to comply with these regulations, our ability to earn revenues will be
materially and negatively impacted. The regulatory process, particularly in the biotechnology field, is uncertain, can
take many years and requires the expenditure of substantial resources. Biological drugs and non-biological drugs are
rigorously regulated. In particular, proposed human pharmaceutical therapeutic product candidates are subject to
rigorous preclinical and clinical testing and other requirements by the FDA in the United States and similar health
authorities in other countries in order to demonstrate safety and efficacy. We may never obtain regulatory approval to
market our proposed products.

Our products may not receive FDA approval, which would prevent us from commercially marketing our products
and producing revenues.

The FDA and comparable government agencies in foreign countries impose substantial regulations on the
manufacture and marketing of pharmaceutical products through lengthy and detailed laboratory, pre-clinical and
clinical testing procedures, sampling activities and other costly and time-consuming procedures. Satisfaction of these
regulations typically takes several years or more and varies substantially based upon the type, complexity and novelty
of the proposed product. We cannot assure you that FDA approvals for any products developed by us will be granted
on a timely basis, if at all. Any such delay in obtaining, or failure to obtain, such approvals could have a material
adverse effect on the marketing of our products and our ability to generate product revenue.

The United States federal government maintains certain rights in technology that we develop using federal
government grant money and we may lose the revenues from such technology if we do not commercialize and
utilize the technology pursuant to established federal government guidelines.

Certain of our and our licensors’ research have been or are being funded in part by U.S. federal government grants. In
connection with certain grants, the federal government retains rights in the technology developed with the grant.
These rights could restrict our ability to fully capitalize upon the value of this research.
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We may not be able to obtain required approvals in countries other than the United States.

The requirements governing the conduct of clinical trials and cell culturing and marketing of our product candidates
outside the United States vary widely from country to country. Foreign approvals may take longer to obtain than FDA
approvals and can require, among other things, additional testing and different clinical trial designs. Foreign
regulatory approval processes generally include all of the risks associated with the FDA approval processes. Some
foreign regulatory agencies also must approve prices of the products. Regulatory approval in one country does not
ensure regulatory approval in another, but a failure or delay in obtaining regulatory approval in one country may
negatively impact the regulatory process in others. We may not be able to file for regulatory approvals and may not
receive necessary approvals to market our product candidates in any foreign country. If we fail to comply with these
regulatory requirements or fail to obtain and maintain required approvals in any foreign country, we will not be able to
sell our product candidates in that country and our ability to generate revenue will be adversely affected.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

On September 30, 2013, we issued 1,055,177 shares of common stock to various board members as compensation for
services and 1,000,000 shares of common stock to Gary Rabin pursuant to his employment agreement. Such shares
were issued in reliance upon the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, for transactions not involving a public offering.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

On November 8, 2013, the Company entered into an employment agreement renewal with Robert Lanza, or the
Renewal, effective October 1, 2013, which renewed Dr. Lanza’s Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated
July 1, 2011, or the Original Agreement, through December 31, 2013 (subject to earlier termination as provided in the
Original Agreement). Under the terms of the Renewal, Dr. Lanza was granted the following compensation in addition
to the compensation due to him under the Original Agreement:

—

The Company agreed to issue to Dr. Lanza, upon execution of the Renewal, (i) 1,285,714 shares of common stock,
and (ii) an option to purchase 1,285,714 shares of common stock with an exercise price equal to fair market value on
the date of grant. The options will vest, and the shares will no longer be subject to the Company’s right to repurchase,
in three equal installments. The first installment vests on the date of execution of the Renewal, the second
installment vests on November 30, 2013, and the third installment vests on December 31, 2013, provided Dr. Lanza
remains employed by the Company on each vesting date.

—Dr. Lanza is eligible to receive, in the Company’s sole discretion, a bonus of up to 40% of his annual salary, payablewithin 75 days of the end of the Company’s fiscal year.
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No provisions of the Original Agreement were changed.

The above summaries of the Renewal and the Original Agreement do not purport to be complete and are subject to
and qualified in their entirety by reference to the respective texts of the Original Agreement and the Renewal. The
Original Agreement is included as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
Commission on August 17, 2011 and is incorporated by reference herein. The Renewal is included as an exhibit to this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit Description

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of Advanced Cell Technology, Inc. as filed on October 24,
2013 with the Delaware Secretary of State (previously filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K filed on October 24, 2013).

10.1+ Employment Agreement Renewal for Robert Lanza*

31.1 Section 302 Certification of Principal Executive Officer.*

31.2 Section 302 Certification of Principal Financial Officer.*

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.*

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.*

101.INS XBRL Instance Document**
101.SCHXBRL Schema Document**
101.CALXBRL Calculation Linkbase Document**
101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document**
101.LABXBRL Label Linkbase Document**
101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document**
______________

* Filed herewith.

**
Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are not deemed filed or part of a registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Section 11 or 12 of the Securities Act or Section 18 of the Securities
Exchange Act and otherwise not subject to liability.

+ Management Contract or Compensation Plan or Arrangement.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

ADVANCED CELL
TECHNOLOGY, INC.

Dated: November 12, 2013 By:/s/ Gary Rabin
Gary Rabin
Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Dated: November 12, 2013 By:/s/ Edward Myles
Edward Myles
Chief Financial Officer & Executive Vice President of Corporate Development

(Principal Financial Officer)

48

Edgar Filing: ADVANCED CELL TECHNOLOGY, INC. - Form 10-Q

97


